City of Portage
Community Development Block Grant &
Finance/Administration Committee Meeting
Monday, August 18, 2014, 6:00 p.m.
City Municipal Building, 115 West Pleasant Street
Conference Room One
Agenda

Members: Rick Dodd, Chairperson; Mike Charles, Martin Havlovic, Doug
Klapper, Richard Lynn

1.
2.

Roll call

Approval of minutes from August 11, 2014.
Review of 2013 audit.

Discussion on 2015 budget and review of Police Services and Fire
Services budgets.

Discussion and Possible Recommendation on the Inter-Municipal
Agreement for Fire Services.

Discussion and Possible Recommendation on Loader (front) Mounted
Snow blower.

Discussion and Possible Recommendation on Water and Sewer User
Rate Study Proposal from Ehlers & Associates, Inc.

Discussion and Possible Approval of Block Grant Subordination dated
8/13/14.

Adjournment.

Rick Dodd, Chairperson



City of Portage
Finance/Administration Committee Meeting
Monday, August 11, 2014, 6:00 p.m.
City Municipal Building, 115 West Pleasant Street
Conference Room One
Minutes

Members Present: Mike Charles, Martin Havlovic, Doug Klapper, Richard Lynn

Excused: Rick Dodd

Also present: Finance Director Mohr, Craig Sauer from Daily Register

1.

Roll call
The meeting was called to order by Vice-Chairperson Havlovic at 6:00pm.

Approval of minutes from July 14, 2014
Motion by Charles, second by Klapper to approve the minutes from the
July 14, 2014 meeting. Motion carried unanimously on call of roll.

Discussion and Possible Recommendation on Claims.
Motion by Charles, second by Klapper to approve claims in the amount of
$1,568,988.93. Motion carried unanimously on call of roll.

Discussion and Possible Recommendation on Proposed Revisions
to Fee Schedule.

Director Mohr reviewed the proposed revisions to the fee schedule
indicating that first is the removal of the $10 permit fee related to
processions, parade, run, etc. which was overlooked as part of the special
event ordinance that was adopted. The second change is to establish a
fixed charge of $55.00 to cover the administrative costs for Lawn
Mowing/Snow and Ice Removal plus time, material and equipment costs.

Motion by Charles, second by Klapper to remove section 66-349 and
change section 26-106/66-126. Motion carried unanimously on call of roll.

Discussion of Possible Recommendation on (2) PEC Leases with
MATC.

Director Mohr reviewed the two PEC Leases with MATC indicating the first
lease is a four year extension to the existing lease. The second lease is a
new lease covering the four year and four month period from September
1, 2014 to December 31, 2018 for a manufacturing training area. The new
lease includes a section for leaseholder improvements of $11,000 which is
to be paid back over a 24 month period.

Motion by Klapper, second by Charles to recommend approving the
leases with MATC at the Portage Enterprise Center. Motion carried
unanimously on call of roll.
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6. Finance Director’'s Comments.
Director Mohr reviewed the meeting schedule for budget reviews; and also
mentioned that the plans are to review 2013 audit at the August 18"
meeting.

7. Adjournment.

Motion by Klapper, second by Lynn to adjourn the meeting at 6:17 pm.
Call of roll was not taken.

Prepared by Jean Mohr, Finance Director
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MILLER, BRUSSELL, EBBEN AND GLAESKE LLC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
POST OFFICE BOX 585
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN
53901

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Council Members
City of Portage
Portage, Wisconsin

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Portage (the “City”), Wisconsin, as of and for the vyear
ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the comptroller of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks cof material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or errcr. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.



Council Members
City of Portage
Page Two

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Portage as of December 31, 2013, and the respective changes
in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 1. N. to the financial statements, the City adopted new
accounting guidance, GASB Statement Nc. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Qutflows
of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position and GASB Statement No.
65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, for the year ended December
31, 2013. Our opinions are not medified with respect to this matter.

As descried in Note 18, the City restated their debt service fund balance and net
position of governmental activities to correct the escrow cash and take it off the
boocks. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Infoermation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
the budgetary comparison information on pages 41 through 46 be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
hmerica, which consisted of inguiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management'’s responses
to our inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide assurance.

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. Qur opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by
this missing information.
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The
financial information listed in the table of contents as other supplemental
information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a regquired
part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal and
state awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations, and is alsc not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

These supplemental comparative statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal
and state awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the supplemental information and the schedule of expenditures of
federal and state awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
August 13, 2014, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial
reporting and cn our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of ocur testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Willer, Brussell, Fbben and Glaeske LLC

Portage, Wisconsin
August 13, 2014
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Aclivities Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and investments $ 8,044,602 5 3,962,275 § 12,006,877
Receivables
Accounts 1,795,569 321,239 2,116,808
Special assessmenis 33,930 33,930
Other receivables 118,787 118,787
Due from other funds 5,308,279 129,161 5,437,440
Due from other governments 1,735 1,735
Prepaid expenses 22,576 10,925 33,501
Inventories 41,090 41,090
Advances to other funds 78,787 78,787
Total Current Assets 15,404,265 4 464,690 19,868,955
Restricted Assets
Cash 159,728 159,728
Accrued interest 3,235 3,235
Total Restricted Assets 0 162,963 162,963
Noncurrent Assets
Other assets and deferred charges 46,212 46,212
Land 2,257,864 500,618 2,758,482
Site improvements 1,578,800 1,578,800
Buildings and building improvements 12,695,955 16,858,291 28,554,246
Furniture and equipment 7,329,880 26,299,593 33,629,473
Infrastructure 29,501,179 . 29,501,179
Less accumulated depreciation (26.530,759) (22,267,896} {48,758 635)
Net Noncurrent Assets 26,832 919 21,436,818 48,269,737
TOTAL ASSETS 3 42237184 3 26,064,471 % 68,301,655
LIABILLITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 264,355 % 33,381 § 297,736
Accrued liabilities 332,696 444 841 777537
Accrued interest payable 127,986 127,986
Accrued vacation and sick pay 159,853 159,853
Due to other funds 87,118 209,865 296,983
Bue to other governments 1,317,724 1,317,724
Uneamed revenue 1,488,334 5,000 1,493,334
Current portion of long-term Habilities 738,190 783,931 1,522,121
Total Current Liabilities 4,356,403 1,636,871 5,993,274
Long-Term Liabilities
Advance from other funds 78,787 78,787
Long-term obligations 10,460,735 9,709,052 20,169,787
Less unamortized bond discounts/premiums 22,505 (55,910} (33,405)
Less current portion (738,180) (783,931) (1,522,121)
Net Long-Term Liabilities 9,745,050 8,047,098 18,693,048
Total Liabilities 14,101,453 10,584,869 24,686,322
DEFERRED INFLLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes 5,083,327 41,648 5,124,975
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 17,462,919 11,757,557 29,220,476
Restricted 3,026,276 162,963 3,189,239
Unrestricted (deficit) 2,563,209 3,517,434 6,080,643
Total Net Position 23,052 404 15,437,954 38,490,358
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET POSITION $ 42237184 § 26,064,471 $ 68,301,655

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Net (Expenses) Revenues

Program Revenues Position
Fees, Fines and Operating
Charges for Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental Activities
General government $ 1,396,209 § 98,966 3 276,221 $  (1.021,022) $ 6§ (1.021022)
Public safety 4,315,044 372,833 24,584 (3,917,527} (3,917.527)
Public works 2,125,091 36,073 4,143,395 (945,623) (945,623}
Parks and recreation 749,292 71,698 66,975 (610,619) (610,619}
Conservation and development 520,739 329,214 404 {191,121} (191,121)
Education 721,827 201,604 (520,223) (520,223)
Capital outlay 173,363 {173,363} {173,363)
Debt Service
Interest 127,001 (127,001) (127.001)
Total Governmental Activities 10,128,566 1,110,488 1,511,579 {7.506,499) 0 {7,506,498)
Business-Type Activities
Water utilities 1,863,881 1,819,597 55,716 55,716
Sewer utilities 1,798,759 1,947,731 148,972 148,972
Total Business-Type Activities 3,662,640 3,867,328 0 0 204,688 204,688
TOTALS $ 13,791,206 % 4977816 § 1,511,579 (7,506,499) 204,688 (7,301,811
General Revenues
Property taxes
General purpose 4,101,780 4,101,780
Debt services . 624,272 624,272
Special revenue 722,597 722,597
State and federal aids not restricted to specific
functions
General 1,655,184 1,655,184
Other 148,987 148,887
Interest and investment earnings 157,806 39,194 197,000
Miscellaneous 221,087 221,087
Gain/loss on sale of fixed assets (1,378} 180 {1,198)
Total General Revenues 7,630,335 39,374 7,669,709
Change in Net Position 123,836 244,062 367,898
NET POSITION - Beginning of Year (Restated) 22,928 568 15,193,892 38,122 460
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $§ 23052404 $ 15437954 § 38,490,358

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Total Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets of $53,363,678, net of accumulated depreciation of ($26,530,759), are not financial
resources and, therefore are not reported in the funds. See Note 3 for additional detail.

Deferred revenue from special assessments is reported in the funds

Accrued interest payable is not due and payable in the current period and is not reported in the
funds.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payabie in the current period and are not reported in the funds.

Bond premiums are not due and payable in the current period and are not reporte'd in the funds.

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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$ 6,796,781

26,832,919

33,930

(127,986)
~ (10,460,735)

(22,505)

$ 23,052,404
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT GF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ (2,216,672)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. There was an adjustment to the fixed assets during the current period which increased
the fixed assets from prior year. 29,521

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation {§1,261,867) exceeded capital outlays
$2,783,032 in the current period. 1,521,165

Governmental funds report capital disposals as revenue for the amount received. However, in the
statement of activities the gain or loss on the disposal of capital assets is recorded. This is the
amount by which the cost exceeded the accumulated depreciation for the life of the assets. (1,378}

Accrued interest expense on long-term debt is reported in the government-wide statement of
activities and changes in net position, but does not require the use of current financial resources:
therefore, accrued interest expense is not reported as expenditures in government funds. 24,452

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. This is the amount of principal repayments of debt. 797,521

Bond premium is reported in the government-wide statement of activities and changes in net position,
but does not require the use of current financial resources; therefore, bond premium is not reported
as an expenditure in government funds. 34,673

Special assessments are recognized in the government funds when received, therefore this is the
amount of difference recognizing the income when earned for the statement of net position. (58,286)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financiai
resources and are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. These include the net

increase in compensated absences {7.160)
Cﬁange in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 123,836

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROFRIETARY FUNDS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable customers
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses
Inventories

Total Current Assets

Restricted Assets
Cash
Accrued interest
Total Restricted Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Other assets and deferred charges
Utility plant in service
Less accumulated depreciation
Net Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued vacation and sick pay
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue
Current portion long-term liahilities
Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Advance from other funds
General obligation bonds
Clean water fund loans
l.ess unamortized bond discounts
Less current portion
Net Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Property taxes

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET POSITION $

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Sewer Water
Utility Utility Total
$ 2,814620 % 1,147655 § 3,962,275
6,739 314,500 321,239
129,161 129,161
10,925 10,925
41,090 41,090
2,832,284 1,632,406 4,464,690
159,728 159,728
3,235 3,235
162,963 O 162,963
46,212 46,212
24 577,350 19,081,152 43,658,502
(14,762,638) (7,505,258} (22,267,896)
9,860,924 11,575,894 21,436,818
$ 12,856,171 $ 13208300 $ 26,064,471
% 25665 $ 7,716 % 33,381
61,314 383,527 444 841
98,189 61,664 159,853
66,570 143,295 209,865
5,000 5,000
480,203 303,728 783,931
731,941 904,930 1,636,871
78,787 78,787
4,344 900 3,045,000 7,389,800
2,243,149 76,003 2,319,152
(55,910} (55,910)
{480,203) {303,728) {783,931}
6,051,936 2,896,062 8,947,998
6,783,877 3,800,992 10,584 869
41,648 41,648
3,226,663 8,530,894 11,757 557
162,963 162,963
2,682 668 834,766 3,517,434
6,072,294 9,365,660 15,437,954
12,866,171 $ 13,208,300 $ 26,084,471
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

REVENUES
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages
Operating supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Office supplies
Employee benefits and payroll taxes
Depreciation
Other general expenses
Insurance
Legal and accounting
Fuel
Transportation
Chemicals
Purchased power
Tax equivalent
Contracted services
 Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income/(Loss)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Interest expense
Disposal of fixed assets
Net Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Change in Net Position
Contributions in Aid of Construction

NET POSITION - Beginning of Year

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Sewer Water

Utility Utility Total
1,826,778 $ 1,900,883 $ 3,727,661
120,953 18,714 139,667
1,947,731 1,919,597 3,867,328
298,379 264,444 562,823
7,755 34,349 42,104
60,839 74,007 134,846
365 35,808 36,173
110,692 97,018 207,710
754,364 466,081 1,220,445
71,552 70,918 142 470
40,531 19,575 60,106
16,703 9,275 25,978
13,684 11,666 25,350
6,294 6,294
78,397 124,432 202,829
123,087 144,711 268,698
346,032 346,032
31,860 15,276 47,136
1,609,108 1,719,886 3,328,994
338,623 199,711 538,334
38,487 707 39,194
(189,651) (143,995) (333,646)
180 180
(150,984) (143,288) (294,272)
187,639 56,423 244 062
0 0 0
5,884,655 9,309,237 15,193,892
6,072294 $ 9365660 $ 15437954




CITY OF PORTAGE

PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from user charges
Cash payments to employees for services
Cash payments for cther operating expenses
Other operating revenues/expenses
Net Cash Provided by (Used For) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash payments for acquisition of capital assets
Cash payments for long-term debt
Cash included in restricted assets
Cash proceeds from sale of assets
Cash payments for interest expense on long-term debt
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments
Net Cash Provided by {Used For) Investing Activities

Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income/(loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities
Depreciation
Add sewer portion of depreciation
Changes in assets, iiabilities, and deferred inflows
Accounts receivable
Prepaids and other assets
Inventories
Pue from/to other funds
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued vacation and sick pay
Iinvestment by municipality
Bond premium
Deferred revenue

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OFERATING ACTIVITIES

Sewer Water
Utility Utility Totals
$ 1826777 § 1941535 $ 3,768,312
(298,418) (262,655) {561,073)
(578,149) (1,480,261) {2,058,410)
123,012 60,168 183,180
1,073,222 258,787 1,332,008
(870,840) (518,988) (1.389,828)
(352,677) (264,906) (617,583)
{73,657) (73,657)
180 180
{189,651} (151,971) {341,622)
{1,486,645) {935,865) (2,422,510)
38,487 707 39,194
38,487 707 39,194
{374,936} (676,371) (1,051,307)
3,189,556 1,824,026 5,013,582
$ 2814620 $ 1147655 $ 3,962,275
$ 338623 $ 199711 $ 538,334
754,364 445,320 1,199,684
20,761 20,761
(1) 40,652 40,651
{45,439) 2,144 (43,295)
2,538 2,539
127,108 (322,184) (195,076)
(103,453) (171,255) (274,708)
2,059 15,766 17,825
{39) 1,789 1,750
{1,400} {1,400}
(16,704) (16,704)
41,648 41,648
$ 1073222 $ 258,787 $ 1,332,009

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash
Taxes receivable
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Due to other taxing districts

TOTAL LIABILITIES

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Agency
Funds

3,738,933
10,463,251

14,202,184

8,373
5,140,457
9,053,354

14,202,184




CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Portage (the “City”) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP} as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant accounting principles
and policies utilized by the City are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Portage is a municipal corporation geverned by an elected Mayor/Council
form of government.

The City's major operations include public safety, fire protectiocn, street
maintenance, health services, parks and recreation, general administrative services,
and water and sewer utility operations.

The reperting entity for the City is based upon criteria set forth by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. All functions of the City for which it exercises
oversight responsibility are included. The reporting entity for the City consists of
{a} the primary government, (b} organizations for which the primary government is
financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that their
exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete., Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected
officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The primary
gevernment is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the
organizaticn’s governing body and (1) it is able to impose its will on that
organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to or burdens on the primary government. The primary government
may be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the primary
government. This report does not contain any component units.

B. Basis of Presentation
Government-Wide Statements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities present financial
information about the City’s governmental and business-type activities. These
statements include the financial activities of the overall government in its entirety,
except those that are fiduciary. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double
counting of internal transactions. These statements distinguish between the
governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other
nonexchange transactions. Business-type activitles are financed in part by fees
charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for business-type activities and for each function of the City’s governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with and are
clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) charges
paid by the recipients for goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. Basis of Presentation {(Continued)
Government-Wide Statements (Continued)

and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund statements provide information about the City’s funds, including fiduciary
funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as other governmental
funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from
exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange
transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal
value. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from
nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
activity that is not reguired to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital project fund and vehicle eguipment replacement fund are used to account for
funds received and expended for purchases of land, construction, renovation,
expansion, and major improvements of streets and other city facilities.

Debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of financial resources for
the payment of principal, interest and related costs on general long-term debt paid
primarily from taxes levied by the City. The fund balance of the debt service fund is
reserved to signify the amounts that are restricted exclusively for debt service
expenditures.

Community development block grant fund is a program provided for ensuring the
community’s ability to conserve, rehabilitate and improve residential properties
occupled by low-to-moderate income residents of the City.

Preprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net
income, financial position, and cash flow. All assets and liabilities are included on
the statements of net position. The City has presented the following major
proprietary fund:
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Water and Sewer Fund

Water and sewer fund is used to account for the provision of water and sewer services
to the residents of the City. Activities of the fund include administration,
operations and maintenance of the water and sewer system and billing and collection
activities. The fund also accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of long-term debt principal and interest for water and sewer debt. All costs
are financed through charges to utility customers with rates reviewed regularly and
adjusted if necessary to ensure integrity of the funds.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Acccuntihg

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when
revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial
statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made,
regardless of the measurement focus applied.

The government-wide statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. The economic resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities
{whether current or non-current) are included on the statement of net position and the
operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net
total assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
earned, including unbilled water and sewer services which are accrued. Expenses are
recognized at the time the liability is incurred.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting revenues are recoghized
when susceptible to accrual; i.e., when they become both measurable and available.
“"Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available”
means collectibie within the current period or soon encugh thereafter to be used to
pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers property taxes as available
if they are collected within 60 days after year end. A one-year availability period
is used for recognition of all other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences are recorded
only when payment is due.

Property taxes are recorded in the year levied as receivables and deferred revenues.
They are recognized as revenues in the succeeding year when services financed by the
levy are being provided.  In addition to property taxes for the municipality, taxes
are collected for and remitted to the state and county governments as well as the
‘local school district and technical college district. Taxes for all state and local
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

governmental units billed in the current year for the succeeding year are reflected as
deferred revenues and due to other taxing units on the accompanying balance sheet.

Taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1.

Property tax calendar - 2013 tax roll:

Lien date and levy date December 2013
Tax bills mailed December 2013
Payment in full, or January 31, 2014
First installment due January 31, 2014
Second installment due July 31, 2014
Personal preperty taxes in full January 31, 2014
Tax sale — 2012 delinguent real estate taxes October 2016

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City pools cash resources of its various funds in order to facilitate the
management of cash. Cash applicable tco a particular fund is readily identifiable.

The balance in the pooled cash accounts is available to meet current operating
requirements. <Cash in excess of current requirements is invested in various interest-
bearing securities and disclosed as part of the City's investments. For purposes of
the combined statements of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

E. Receivables

General accounts receivable have been adjusted for all known uncollectible accounts.
No allowance is necessary at year end. Delinquent real estate taxes as of July 31 are
paid in full by the county, which assumes the collection thereof. No provision for
uncollectible accounts receivable has been made in the accompanying Proprietary Fund
financial statements because the water and sewer utilities have the right by law to
place delinquent bills on the tax roll.

¥. Due To and Due From Other Funds

Interfund receivables and payables arise from interfund transactions and are recorded
by all funds affected in the period in which transactions are executed.

G. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIF0O) method. The costs
of governmental fund type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed
rather than when purchased. Inventories were considered not material to the financial
statements; therefore no inventories are recorded at year end. Prepaild items
represent payments made by the City for which benefits extend beyond year end.
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NCOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
H. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets,
are reported in the applicable governmental or business~type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements and in the fund financial statements for
proprietary funds. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated
historical cost 1f actual historical cost is not available. Donated assets are valued
at their fair market value on the date donated. Repairs and maintenance are recorded
as expenses. Renewals and betterments are capitalized. Interest has not been
capitalized during the construction period on property, plant and equipment.

Assets capitalized, not including infrastructure assets, have an original cost of
$1,000 or more and over three years of useful life. Depreciation has been calculated
on each class of depreciable property using the straight-line method. Estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 20-50 years
Water and sewer system 30-50 years
Infrastructure 20-35 years
Furniture and equipment 5-20 years
Improvements 20 years
Library boocks 10 years
Computer and related hardware 5 years

I. Advances

Advances to and advances from governmental funds represent noncurrent portions of
interfund receivables and payables. The governmental fund making the advance
establishes a fund balance reserve equal to the amount of the advance.

J. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America reguires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

K. Compensated Absences

The City reports compensated absences in accordance with the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences. Vacation benefits are accrued
as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees’ rights to receive
compensation is attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the
City will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some
other means. The City records a liability for accumuiated unused vacation time when
earned for all employees based on their contracts with more than one year of service.
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
K. Compensated Absences {(Continued)

Vacation - The City of Portage employees are granted vacation in varying amounts,
based on length of service. Vacation leave earned in the preceding year must be used
within one year of the employee’s anniversary date.

The City's policy allows employees to earn varying amcunts of sick pay each year
employed. The City does not have a limit on sick leave.

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial
statements. .

For governmental fund financial statements, the unpaid compensated absences are not
expected to be paid using expendable available resources and, therefore, the liability
is not reported.

Retirement Plans - City employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System. All
contributions made by the City on behalf of its employees are reported as expenditures
when paid.

L. Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net position
invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, nel of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used
for the acquisition, construction or improvement for those assets, and adding back
unspent proceeds. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or
through external restricticons imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of
other governments.

M. Claims and Judgments

Claims and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governmental
Accecounting Standards Board pronouncements are met. Claims and judgments that would
normally be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are recorded during
the year as expenditures in the governmental fund types. If they are not to be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources, a liability is recorded in the
statement of net position. The related expenditure is recognized when the liability is
liguidated. <Claims and judgments are recorded in the proprietary fund types as expenses
when the related liabilities are incurred. There were no significant claims or
judgments at year end.

N. Deferred Outflows/Inflows

Deferred Outflows of Resources: The City reports decreases in net assets and fund
balances that relate to future periods as deferred outflows of resources in a separate
section of its government-wide and proprietary funds statement of net position and
governmental funds balance sheet. There were no deferred outflows of resources
reported in this year’s financial statements.
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
N. Deferred Outflows/Inflows {Continued)

Deferred Inflows of Resources: The City’s government-wide and governmental funds
report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element reflects an increase in net assets and fund balance that relates to
a future period. The City has only one type of item that qualifies for reporting in
this category. Accordingly deferred property taxes are reported in the government-wide
statement cof net position and in the governmental funds balance sheet as a deferred
inflow of resources since the property taxes are levied for use in the subsequent
year.

0. Contributions in Aid of Construction — Proprietary Funds

Contributions in aid of construction represent amcunts received from customers for
construction and the value of property (plant) contributed to the utility. These
amounts are not subject to repayment.

P. Economic Development and Housing Rehabilitation Loans Receivable

The City has received federal and state grant funds for economic development and
housing rehabilitation loan programs to various businesses and individuals. The City
records a loan receivable when the loan has been made and funds have been disbursed.

It is the City’s policy to record deferred revenue for the net amount of the
receivable balance. As loans are repaid, revenue is recognized. When new loans are
made from the repayments, expenditures are recorded. Interest received from loan
repayments is recognized as revenue when received in cash. Any unspent loan
repayments at year end are presented as designated fund balance in the financial
statements.

The City is limited by the Wisconsin Department of Commerce to the amount of program
income from economic development leocans it may retain and loan to other businesses.
Program income incliudes the principal and interest received from economic development
loan repayments. Based upon its current population, the City may retain $500,000.

At December 31, 2013, the City has not exceeded its maximum retention cap. When it
does, a liability to the state will be recorded.

Q. Fund Balance Reporting

The City of Portage reports under provisiocns of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions
{GASB 54). This statement defines the different types of fund balances that a
governmental entity must use for financial reporting purposes.

GASB 54 requires the fund balance amounts to be properly reported within one of the
fund balance categories listed bkelow:

1. Nonspendable, such as fund balance associated with inventories, prepaid expenses,
long-term loans and notes receivable, and property held for resale (unless the
proceeds are restricted, committed, or assigned),
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Q. Fund Balance Reporting (Continued)

2. Restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that can be spent only for
the specific purposes stipulated by constitution, external resources providers, or
through enabling legislation,

3. Committed fund balance classificaticn includes amounts that can be used cnly for
the specific purposes determined by a formal action of the Board of Directors (the
City’s highest level of decision-making authority),

4. Assigned fund balance classification is intended to be used by the government for
specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed, and :

5. Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the govermnment's general
fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.

Fund balance amounts are reported in conformance with generally accepted accounting
principles and shall be reclassified not less than the end of each fiscal year for
general purpose financial statements. The City will report inventories, prepaid
expenses, long-term receivables, and amounts legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact as nonspendable. The fund balance for the special revenue funds,
debt service fund, and other funds established by regulatory authority will be
classified as restricted.

The Board may, from time to time, commit additional amounts of fund balance to a
specific purpose. Such action shall be taken in open meeting and require the approval
of a majority of the Beard. Commitments of fund balance, once made, can be modified
only by majority vote of the Board.

The Board may authorize and direct an individual to assign fund balances for specific
purposes; to the extent such assignment does not create a negative unassigned fund
balance. As of December 31, 2013, the Becard has not authorized any individual with the
autheority to assign funds.

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Investments of funds are restricted by state statutes. Available investments are
limited to:

1. Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank, trust company or savings
and loan association, maturing in three years or less.

2. Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college
district, village, town, or school district of the state. BAlso, bonds issued by
a local exposition district, a local professional baseball park district, or by
the University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority.
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
3. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government.
4. The local government investing pool.

5. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second
highest rating category of a nationally recognized rating agency.

&. Securities of an open-end management investment company or investment trust,
subject to various conditions and investment options.

7. Repurchase agreements with public depositories with certain conditions.
No viclations of these restrictions occurred during the year.

Deposits in banks are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpoeration (FDIC) in
the amount of $250,000 per official custedian. In addition, the state of Wisconsin has
a State Guarantee Fund, which provides a maximum of $400, 000 per public depository
above the amount provided by the FDIC. Due to the relatively small size of the
Guarantee Fund in relation to the total coverage, total recovery of losses may not be
available. However, since the risk that an economic event would occur of the magnitude
that would deplete the funds has been assessed as minimal, this coverage has been
included in computing the amounts in Category 1 below.

Investments: Wisconsin Statute 66.04(2) and 67.11(2) restrict investment of
temporarily idle cash. The City has adopted an investment policy pursuant to these
statutes, which allows the City to invest in time deposits, securities guaranteed by
the U.S. Government, securities of the Wisconsin Local Government Pooled Investment
Fund, the Wisconsin City Liquid Asset Fund and commercial paper if the security has
the highest or second highest rating of a nationally recognized rating agency.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its
deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk
that, in the event cf the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or
collateral securities that are in the possessicn of another party. Wisconsin statutes
require repurchase agreements o be fully collateralized by bonds or securities issued
or guaranteed by the federal government or its instrumentalities. The City does not
have an additional custodial credit policy.

- 22
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTIMNUED)

The City’s deposits and investments are categorized into three categories of custodial
credit risk:

* Category 1 - Insured or registered which are collateralized with securities helid
by the City or by its agent in the City’s name.

*+ Category 2 - Uninsured and unregistered deposits and investments, which are
collateraiized with securities, held by the counter party’s trust department or
agent in the City’s name.

* Category 3 - Uncollateralized deposits and uninsured and unregistered
investments for which the securities are held by the counter party, or by its

trust department or agent but not in the City’'s name.

The City’s cash and investment balances at December 31, 2013 were as follows:

Category Bank Carrying
1 2 3 Balance Amount
BMO Harris Bank § 113,694 § 0 s 0 s 113,694 8§ 113,694
¥.5. Bank 650, 000 934,562 1,584,562 1,324,382
Bank of Wisconsin Dells 650,000 4,500,000 3,247,497 8,397,497 7,952,989
Ehlers Investment
Partners 2,023,737 2,021,737 2,021,737
Totals $3,435,431 $4,500,000 $ 4,182,059 $12,117,490 11,412,802
Petty cash 1,597
Morgan Stanley Smith Barney 256,199
Local government investment pool 4,234,940
Less: Cash held by fiduciary funds (3,738,933)
Cash and Investments Reported on Statement of Net Position $12,166, 605

The City had no significant type of investment during the year not included in the
above schedule.

Investments are stated at fair wvalue, which is the amount at which an investment could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based
on quoted market prices. No investments are reported at amortized cost. Adjustments
necessary to record investments at fair value are récorded in the operating statement
as increases or decreases in investment income. Investment income on commingled
investments of municipal accounting funds is allocated based on average investment
palances. The difference between carrying amounts and bank balances is due to
outstanding checks and deposits in transit.
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NCTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED}

The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pocl (LGIP) is part of the State Investment
Fund {(8IF), and is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF
reports the fair value of its wunderlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP
have the right to withdraw their funds in total on one day’s notice. At December 31,
2013, the fair value of the LGIP's assets was substantially equal to the City’s share
as reported below. The investment in the LGIP is insured against defaults in
principal paymenits by Financial Security Assurance Incorporated.

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill
its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of
a rating by a naticnally recognized statistical rating organization. Wisconsin
statutes limit investments in securities to the top two ratings assigned by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an
investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising
from increasing interest rates.

The City’s investments at December 31, 2013 include the following:

Credit Credit Exposure
Quality As a Percentage of Fair
Rating Total Investments Maturities Value
Morgan Stanley Smith Barney BAR 6% 2 years § 256,199
Wisconsin Local Government 89 days
Investment Pool Unrated 94 % average 4,234,940
Total 100% 54,491,139

Interest Rate Risk: The City does not have a formal policy limiting investment
maturities that would help manage its exposure to fair value losses from increasing
interest rates.

investment Credit Risk: The City places no limit on the amount it may invest in any
cone issuer. At December 31, 2013, the City had no concentration of credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 3 CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset balances and activity for the year ended

follows:

Governmental Activities

Land

Capital assets being depreciated
Site improvements
Buildings
Vehicles
infrastructure
Furniture and equipment

Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for
Site improvements
Buildings
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Furniture and equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets Being
Net of
Accumulated Depreciaticn

Depreciated,

Governmental Activities Capital Assets,
Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Business-Type Activities
Land
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings
Fuarniture and eguipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Total Business Type Assets
Being Depreciated, Net of
Accumulated Depreciation
Business-Type Activities Capital
Assets, Net of Accumulated
Depreciation

December 31,

2013 were as

Beginning Prior Years Ending

Balance Adjustment increases Decreases Balance
$ 2,257,864 § 0 $ 0 5 0 % 2,257,864
1,514,488 64,331 1,578,800
11,211,085 1,484,870 12,695,955
3,987,769 72,508 338,717 (43, 000) 4,355,994
28,869,754 631,425 29,501,179
2,709,498 699 263, 689 2,973,886
48,292,575 73,207 2,783,032 {43,000) 51,105,814
{1,115,250Q) (26,570) (1,141,820}
(4,623,383 (213,315 (4,836, 698)
{2,757,150) {43,7173) {304,174} 41,622 {3,063,475)
(14,677,100} (563, 691) (15,240,791)
(2,093,945) 87 (154,117 (2,247,975)
(25,266,828) (43,686) {1,261,867) 41,622 (26,530,759
23,025,747 29,521 1,521,165 {1,378) 24,575,055
$ 25,283,611 g 29,521 $ 1,523,165 % (1,378) 5 26,832,919
$ 500,618 $ Q $ 4] $ 0 5 500,618
16,442,872 415,219 16,858,291
25,365,684 974, 409 {40,500} 26,299,593
(21,087,951} (1,220,445) 40,500 (22,267,896}
20,720,605 Q 169,383 0 20,889,988
$ 231,221,223 $ 0 § 169,383 $ 0 § 21,390,606




CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 3 CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government $ 162,653
Public safety 502,686
Public works 247,565
Parks and recreation 87,2590
Conservation and development 60,664
Education 201,008

Total Depreciation for Governmental Activities $1,261,867

NOTE 4 LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations balances and activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 were
as follows:

Amcunts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities
Bonds
G.0. Bonds 5 6,060,000 5 0 $ 300,000 % 5,760,000 5310, 000
G.0. Promisscry Notes(Restated) 4,107,521 497,521 3,610,000 418,190
Total Bonds 10,167,521 0 797,521 9,370,000 728,190
Other Liabilities
Vested employee benefits 1,083,575 7,160 1,090,735 10,000
Total Other Liabilities 1,083,575 7,160 0 1,090,735 10,000
Total Governmental Activity
Long-Term Obligations $11,251,096 § 7,160 § 797,521 $10,460,735 $739,180
Business-Type Activities .
G.0Q. Bonds $2,390,000 s 0 s 15,000 $ 2,375,000 $ 25,000
G.0. Promissory Notes 5,310,900 296,000 5,014,900 444,410
Clean Water PFund Loans 2,625,735 306,583 2,319,152 314,521
Total Business Type
Activities Long-term
Obligations $10,326,635 3 Q0 $ 617,583 § 9,709,052 $783,931

Payments on bonds and lcoans are made by the debt service fund. Vested employee
benefits will be liquidated by several of the governmental funds.

Total interest expense for the year was $235,777 and interest and other fiscal charges
paid during the year was $260,229 for governmental activities.

The full faith, credit, and taxing powers of the City secure all general obligation
debt, including business-type activities, if any. Bonds and notes payable are
comprised cof the following individual issues:

- 26 -



CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 4 LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Issue Interest Date of Original Balance
Dates Rates Maturity Indebtedness 12/31/13
G.0. Refunding Bond 03/18/09 2.25-4.35% 04/01/22 810,000 720,000
G.0. Promissory Note 05/17/11 2.00-3.00% 04/01/21 1,890,000 1,770,000
G.0. Promissory Bond 04/01/12 0.55-3.50% 04/01/27 2,175,000 2,085,000
G.0. Promissory Note 08/02/12 0.50-2.00% 04/01/22 1,995,000 1,840,000
G.0. Promissory Bond 08/02/12 2.00-2.85% 04/01/29 3,130,000 2,955,000
Total General Cbligation Debt* $9,370, 000
Proprietary Funds
Clean Water Fund Loan 09/23/98 2.64% 05/01/18 4,341,108 §$ 1,340,798
G.0. Promissory Note* 131/01/04 2.75-4.45% 10/01/24 3,060,000 190,000
Clean Water Fund Loan 04/25/07 2.475% 05/01/26 121,379 76,003
Clean Water Fund Loan 03/26/08 2.365% 05/01/27 1,159,443 902, 351
USDA Note 10/06/10 3.00% 10/01/50 3,645,000 3,494,900
G.0. Promissory Note* 05/17/11  2.00-3.00% 04/01/21 600,000 480, 000
G.0. Promissory Note* 05/17/11 2.00-3.00% 04/01/21 85C,000 850, GO0
G.C. Promissory Bond* 08/02/12 2.00-2.25% 04/01/23 2,350,000 2,375,000
Tetal Proprietary Funds Debt $§ 9,709,052

The legal debt limit and margin of indebtedness is set at 5% of equalized value by
Wisconsin Statutes. The margin of indebtedness at December 31, 2013 is:

Equalized value certified by Wisconsin Department of Revenue for 2013 5547,426, 300

27,371,315
13,265,000

Margin of indebtedness at 5%
*Deduct long~term debt applicable to debt margin

Margin of Indebtedness $ 14,106,315

Aggregate cash flow requirements for retirement of long-term principal and interest on
bonds and notes payable as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Business-Type
Long-term Obligations

Governmental Activity
Long-term Chbligations

Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 728,190 $ 215,113 & 783,931 S 250,080 $ 1,977,314
2015 809,420 201,426 762,444 226,666 1,599,956
2016 729,980 185,615 841,840 206,205 1,963,640
2017 123, 680 169,760 830,410 184,762 1,906,612
2018 697,720 153,756 824,863 163,656 1,839,995
2019 and after 5,683,010 669, 680 5,665,564 1,987,053 14,005,307

Totals $ 9,370,000 $3,595,350 89,709,052 $3,018,422 $23,692,824
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 5 INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY

Interfund receivable and payable balances in the fund financial statements on December
31, 2013 are as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Agency Fund $3,705,746
Swimming Pool $ 39,024
TIF 5 $ 125,185
TIF 4 $ 680,114
Mass Transit S 17,513
Sewer Utility s 22,800
Debt Service $ 143,741
Water Utility S 34,518
School Liaison s 431
Vehicle Repl. TIF 4 5 6lz2
Water Utility Capital Project S 45,470
Sewer Utility $ 42,043
Agency Fund $ 41,648
Library Agency Fund $ 449,260
BID Agency Fund S 89,500
Debt Service BAgency Fund $ 668,312
Sewer Utility $ 1,727
Water Utility $ 108,776
TILF 7 3 5,898
Capital Project 5 30,000
Capital Project General Fund s 3,246
TIF 6 s 121,724
Agency Fund 5 19,01%
Revolving Sidewalk Agency Fund $ 30,729
Economic Development Business Incubater 5 9,990
TIF 4 Agency Fund S 14,810
TIF 5 Agency Fund S 90,523
TIF 7 Agency Fund s 30,910
Capital Project $ 510,000
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 6 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

All eligible City employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System {WRS), a
cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit, public employee retirement system.
All employees, initially employed by a participating WRS employer prior to July 1,
2011, expected to work at least 600 hours a year (440 hours for teachers and school
district educational support employees) and expected to be employed for at least one
year from employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS. All
employees, initially employed by a participating WRS employer on or after July 1,
2011, and expected to work at least 1200 hours a yvear (880 hours for teachers and
scheool district education support employees), and expected to be employed for at least
one year from employee’s date of hire are eligible te participate in the WRS. Note:
Employees hired to work nine or ten menths per year, (e.g. teacher contracts), but
expected to return year after year are considered to have met the one-year
requirement. |

Effective the first day of the first pay period on or after June 29, 2011 the employee
reguired contribution was changed to one-half of the actuarially determined
contribution rate for General Employment category, including Teachers, and Executive
and Elected Officials. Required contributions for protective contributions are the
same rate as general employees. Employers are required to contribute the remainder of
the actuarially determined contribution rate. The employer may not pay the employee
required contribution unless provided for by an existing collective bargaining
agreement. Contribution rates for 2013 were:

Employee Employer
General (including Teachers) 6.65% 6.65%
Executives and Elected Officials 7.00% 7.00%
Protective with Social Security 6.65% 9.75%
Protective without Social Security 6.65% 12.35%

The payroll for the City employees covered by the WRS for the year ended December 31,
2013 was $3,822,450; the employer's total payroll was $3,949,693. The total required
contribution for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $571,428, which consisted of
$317,235, or 8.3% of payrcll from the employer and $254,193, or 6.7% of payrcll from
employees. Total contributions for the years ending December 31, 2012 and 2011 were
$493,121 and $494,083, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each
year.

Employees who retire at or after age 65 (62 for elected officials and 54 for
protective occupation employees with less than 25 years of service, 53 for protective
occupation employees with more than 25 years of service) are entitled to receive a
retirement benefit. Employees may retire at-age 55.{50 for protective cccupation
employees) and receive actuarially reduced benefits. The factors influencing the
benefit are: (1) final average earnings, (2) years of creditable service and (3) a
formula factor. A final average earnings is the average of the employee's three
highest years’” earnings. Employees terminating covered employment and submitting
application before becoming eligible for a retirement benefit may withdraw their
contributions and, by deing so, forfeit all rights to any subseguent benefit. For
employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer actively
employed on or after Rpril 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five years is
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NCTE 6 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

required for eligibility for a retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to
1990 and on or after April 24, 1998 and prior to July 1, 2011 are immediately wvested.
Participants who initially became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 20%1 must have five
years of creditable service to be vested.

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility and
the amount of all benefits are determined under Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

The WRS issues an annual financial report that may be obtained by writing to:

Department of Employee Trust Funds
P.Q. Box 7931
Madison, WI 53787-7831.

NOTE 7 POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

In addition to providing retirement benefits, the City provides health care benefits
for certain early retirement employees. The cost of providing these benefits for
eligible participants aggregated $73,484 for the year ended December 31, 2013. The
balance for retired employees as of December 31, 2013 was $165,077.

NOTE 8 RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural
disasters. The City manages these risks through the purchase of varicus forms of
commercial insurance. Certain of the commercial insurance policies have established
deductible amounts whereby the district would be responsible for the portion of
claims, losses, and damages under the deductible limits. BAll funds participate in the
coverages provided by the commercial insurance carriers. Each fund would be
responsible for its share of losses either below the deductible amounts or for losses
exceeding the coverage limits of the commercial policies. There was no significant
reduction in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year. Settlements have not
exceaded insurance coverage for the past three years.

NOTE S CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

From time to time, the City is party to various pending claims and legal proceedings.
Althcocugh the outcome of such matters cannot be forecasted with certainty, it is the
opinion of management that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or
proceedings will have a material effect on the City’s financial position or results of
operations. :
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NOTE 9 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

The City participates in a number of state and federally assisted grant programs.
These programs are subject to program compliance audits by grantors or their
representatives. The audits of these programs for or including the year ended
December 31, 2013 have not been conducted. Accordingly, the City’s compliance with
applicable grant requirements will be established at some future date. The amount, if
any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be
determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be
immaterial.

NOTE 10 EXCESS OF ACTUAL EXPENDITURE OQVER BUDGET

The feollowing individual funds had an excess of actual expenditures over budget for
the year ended December 31, 2013:

Governmental Activities

(Expenditures)
General Fund 5 74,517
Debt Service Fund 5 64,783
CDBG Fund $ 165,461
Special Revenue Funds 5 730,561

NOTE 11 FUND BALANCES

Portions of fund balances are nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or
unassigned and ncot available for current expenses or expenditures. Details of these
fund classifications are as follows:

Business -
Type
Governmental Activities Activities
Capital Vehicle Debt Other
General Project Eguip. Rep. Service CDBG Governmental Utility
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Nonspendable s 18,347 & 0 3 0 s o] s 0 S 4,229 3 0
Restricted for:
Capital project 1,374,633
Vehicle equip. 1,428,887
Debt service 2,660
CDBG 6,128
Other 341,954
Sewer 162,963
Assigned 13,120
Unassigned 3,606,823
Total fund
balances $3,638,290 51,374,633 51,428,887 S 2,660 $6,128 $346,183 5162, 963
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NOTE 11 FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Restricted net position balances in the government-wide statement of net position
consist of the following:

Government activities:

Capital preoject fund 51,374,633
Vehicle equip. replacement fund 1,428,887
Debt service fund 2,660
CDBG fund 6,128
Special revenue funds 126,912
Capital project funds 219,271

Total 53,158,491

Business-type activities:
Sewer utility 5 162,963
NOTE 12 BSEGMENTS OF ENTERPRISE ACTIVITIES

There are services provided by the City which are financed by user charges. The key
financial data for the year ended December 31, 2013 for those services are as follows:

Sewer Water

Cperating Revenues

Sales $ 1,826,778 $ 1,900,883

Cther revenue S 120, 953 5 18,714
Operating Expenses

Depreciation $ 754, 364 $ 466,081
Operating Income (Loss) $ 338,623 s 199,711
Change in net position 5 187,639 S 56,423
Capital Contributions $ 0 $ 0
Total Assets 512,856,172 513,208,300
Net Working Capital (Deficit) $ 2,100,343 S 727,476
Total Ligbilities 5 6,783,936 5 3,800,992
Bonds and Notes Payable 5 6,588,049 5 3,121,003
Total Net Position . 5 6,072,294 5 9,365,660
Property, Plant and Equipment Additions $ 870,840 5 518,988
Deletions 5 0 s 40,500
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NOTE 13 RESTRICTED ASSETS

Mandatory segregations of assets are presented on the combined balance sheet as
restricted assets. Such segregations are required by bond agreements and other
external parties. Current liabilities payable from these restricted assets are so
classified. The excess of restricted assets over current liabilities payable from
restricted assets will be used first for retirement of related long-term debt. The
remainder, 1f generated from earnings, is a restriction on net position.

Redemption ~ Used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over
the next twelve months.

Depreciation - Used to report resources set aside to fund plant renewals and
replacement or make up potential future deficiencies in the redemption account.

Capital Improvement - Used to report proceeds of revenue bond issuances that are
restricted for use in construction.

Equipment Replacement Account - The Sewer Utility established an equipment replacement
account to be used for significant mechanical equipment as required by the Wisconsin

Department of Natural Resources.

Following is a list of restricted assets at December 31, 2013:

Bend redemption account ${309,185)
Capital improvement 468,913
RAccrued interest 3,235

Total Restricted Assets $ 162,963

NOTE 14 FIRE PROTECTION AGREEMENT

The City has entered into an agreement with the Towns of Pacific, Caledonia, Lewiston,
and Fort Winnebago to provide fire protection services. The towns are jointly
respensible for the replacement of designated firefighting apparatus used by the City
to provide fire/rescue services to the towns. The towns contribute a fixed sum
annually to the vehicle and eguipment replacement fund. The amount is based on the
amortized replacement cost of firefighting apparatus owned by the towns. The towns
contribute an additicnal amount annually to the Vehicle and Replacement Fund based on
the amortized replacement cest of firefighting apparatus owned in common by the towns
and the City. The towns’ prorated contribution is 51% and the City is 49% of the
established annual amortized replacement cost of said apparatus. FEach of the four
towns’ annual contribution is determined on the basis of their respective percentage
share of the aggregate egualized assessed valuation of the four towns and is payable
to the City within the first quarter of the calendar year. The City made a payment of
$186,801 to the vehicle replacement fund for the year ending December 31, 2013.

- 33 -



CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTIE 15 AMBULANCE SERVICE AGREEMENT

During 1999, the City entered into an ambulance service agreement with Divine Savior
Hospital and Nursing Home, Inc. The Towns of Caledonia, Fort Winnebago, Lewiston, and
Pacific also have each separately entered into ambulance service agreements with the
hespital. 1In the City’s agreement with the hospital, the City is to rurchase and then
lease to the hospital, ambulances and related equipment necessary for the operation of
the ambulance service. 1In order to lease the ambulances and related equipment to the
hospital, the City issued General Obligation Promissory Notes in the amount of
$365,000. The City anticipates that the lease payments, should the lease run its full
term, will be sufficient to pay all amcunts due and owing under this borrowing.

The City is to fund the hospital for any shortfall {expenses, exceeding revenue) it
experiences in providing ambulance service. The towns that have alsc entered into
agreements have agreed to reimburse the City for their respective shares of any
shortfall based on population percentages, to be adjusted annually on January 1 of
each year. The City accounts for its share of the operation in the ambulance district
special revenue fund.

NOTE 16 TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICTS

This section contains the financial information of the City of Portage Tax Incremental
Districts as recorded in the various funds of the City of Portage governmental
activities.

The Districts were created under the provisions of Chapter 66.1105 of the Wisconsin
State Statutes. The purpose of that chapter is to allow a municipality to recover
develeopment and improvement costs in a designated area from the property taxes
generated on the increased valuation of the property after the creation of the
district. The tax on the increased value is called a tax increment.

The statutes allow a municipality to collect tax increments until the net project
costs have been fully recovered, or until 27 years after the creation date, whichever
occurs first. Project costs uncollected at the dissolution date are absorbed by the
City of Portage.

TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 3

The creation date of Tax Incremental District No. 3 was August 28, 1995. The
estimated project plan costs are $2,165,000.

AS3ETS
Cash and investments 566,479
TOTAL ASSETS $66,479

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liakilities
Due to other funds S G
Total Liabilities 0
Fund Balances Restricted 66,479
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $66,479
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NOTE 16 TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICTS (CONTINUED)

TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 3 (CONTINUED}

Year From Date
Ended of Creation
SOQURCES OF FUNDS
Tax increments $ 28,426 3 534,181
Intergovernmental 3 428,077
Commercial 3,353
Investment income 47
Proceeds from long-term debt 1,305,000
Miscellaneous 118,855
Transfer from other funds 148,652
Total Sources of Funds 28,429 2,538,165
USES OF FUNDS
Capital and administrative expenditures 1,556 729,471
Principal on long-term debt 62,510 1,305,000
Interest and fiscal charges 69, 385 437,215
Total Uses of Funds 133,451 2,471,686
Excess (Deficiency) of Socurces of Funds
Over Uses of Funds (105,022} 66,479
FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year 171,501 0
FUND BALANCE -~ END OF YEAR 5 66,479 § 66,479

TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NOC. 4

Tax Incremental District No. 4 was created on August 13, 2003.
been made. The project plan estimate of capital expenditures is as follows:

Land Acguisition

$1, 200,000

Water System Improvements . 425, 300
Sanitary Sewer System Improvements 385, 000
Road Improvements 870,000
Storm Water Management and Mass Grading 400,000
Railroad Spur 200,000
Other Development Incentives 250,000
Administration/Organization 62,500

Total Capital Expenditures $3,792,500
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NOTE 16 TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICTS (CONTINUED}

TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 4 (CONTINUED}

ASSETS
Cash and investments s 0
Due from other funds 14,810
TOTAL ASSETS 5 14,810

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Due to other funds $680,726
Deferred revenue 14,810
Total Liabilities 695,536
Fund Balances Restricted (680,726)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 5 14,810

From Date
Year Ended of Creation

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Tax increments K] 15,246 $ 37,127
Intergovernmental 1,520,420
Proceeds from long~term debt 2,102,500
Miscellaneous 20,55H1

Total Sources of Funds 15,246 3,680,598

USES OF FUNDS

Capital and administrative expenditures 17,168 3,263,233
Principal on lcng-term debt €8, 300 410,000
Interest and fiscal charges 46,005 688,091

Total Uses of Funds 131,473 4,361,324

Excess (Deficiency) of Sources of Funds

Over Uses of Funds {116,227) (680, 726)
FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year {564,499) 0
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $({680,726) S (680,726)

TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 5

The creation date of Tax Incremental District No. 5 was January 12, 2004. The
project plan estimate of capital expenditures is as follows:

Portage Highlands Demclition and Site Preparation $1,545,000

Construction of Condominium Units 404, 000
Total Capital Expenditures 51,949,000
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 16 TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICTS (CONTINUED)

TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 5 (CONTINUED)

ASSETS
Cash and investments s 0
Due from other funds 90, 523
TOTAL ASSETS $ 90,523

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Due to other funds $131,083
Deferred revenue 90,523
Total Liabilities 221,606
Fund Balances Restricted {(131,083)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 2_30,523

From Date
Year Ended of Creation

SOURCES COF FUNDS

Tax increments $ 104,221 $ 918,837
Intergovernmental 9,363
Investment income 1,928
Proceeds from long-term debt 3,590,000
Miscellaneous 2,372

Total Scurces of Funds 104,221 4,522,500

USES OF FUNDS

Capital and administrative expenditures 1,689 1,908,922
Principal on long-term debt 150,000 2,112,206
Interest and fiscal charges 9,442 632,455

Total Uses of Funds 161,131 4,653,583

Excess {Deficiency) of Sources of Funds

Over Uses of Funds {56,910) (131,083)
FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year (74,173) 0
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR S5{131,083} S (131,083)

TAX TINCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 6

The creation date of Tax Incremental District No. 6 was April 28, 2008. No
amendments have been made. The project costs are expected to be recovered by 2030
which is 5 years earlier than the 27 year max 1ife. The project plan estimate of
capital expenditures is as follows:
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 16 TAX INCREMENTAIL DISTRICTS (CONTINUED)

TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 6 (CONTINUED)

Cook Street Reconstruction $ 750,000
Unspecified Development Assistance 2,300,000
Market Square Parking 206,000
Canal Rehabilitation 750,000
Total Capital Expenditures 54,000,000
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 23,465
TOTAL ASSETS S 23,465

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Due to other funds $ 121,724
Total Liabilities 121,724

Fund Balances
Restricted {98,259}
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 23,465

From Date
Year Ended ¢f Creation

SCURCES OF FUNDS
Intergovernmental $ 37,576 5 43,034
Total Sources of Funds 37,576 43,034

USES OF FUNDS
Capital and administrative expenditures 124,411 141,293
Total Uses of Funds 124,411 141,293

Excess {Deficiency) of Sources of Funds

Over Uses of Funds {(86,835) (98,259}
FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year (11,424) 0
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ (98,259) S (98,259)
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 16 TAX INCREMENTAL, DISTRICTS (CONTINUED)
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 7
Tax Incremental District No. 7 was created on September 23, 2010. The project

costs are expected to be recovered by 2033 which is 5 years earlier than the 27
year max life. The project plan estimate of capital expenditures is as follows:

East Wisconsin Improvements $1,000,000
Townsend-Brady Street Storm Sewer 200,000
Superior Street/Fairground Improvements 840,000
East Wisconsin Turning Lane to Cntario 25,000
East Wisccensin/Waucna Trail Signalization 150,000
East Wisconsin/Brooks Street Intersection Improvements 50,000
Townsend Street Wauona Trail Intersecticn Improvements 50C,000
Revolving Loan Fund 250, 000
Total Capital Expenditures 52,565,000
ASSETS
Cash and investments s 27,417
Due from other funds _ 546,910
TOTAL ASSETS 5 568,327
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities _
Due to other funds $ 0
Deferred revenue 30,510
Total Liabilities 30,910
Fund Balances Restricted 537,417
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 568,327

From Date
Year Ended of Creation

SOURCES CF FUNDS

Tax increments $ 30,418 $ 76,168
Intergovernmental 1,773 2,742
Proceeds from long-term debt 510,000 510,000

Total Sources of Funds 542,191 588, 910

USES OF FUNDS

Capital and administrative expenditures 2,331 18,608
Interest and fiscal charges 32,885 32,885
Total Uses of Funds 35,216 51,493
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 16 TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICTS (CONTINUED)

TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 7 (CONTINUED)

Excess (Deficiency) of Sources of Funds

Over Uses of Funds 506,975 537,417
FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year 30,442 0
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR S 537,417 $ 537,417

NOTE 17 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events were evaluated through August 13, 2014, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 18 PRIOCR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, the City received bond proceeds used to
advance refund a portion of two outstanding debt obligations. An escrow account was
created to pay these obligations in future years. The escrow cash account was recorded
on the City of Portage’s financial statements in 2012.

The escrow cash was deposited with an escrow agent who is responsible for paying these
debts. Therefore, the escrow cash account and the related debt should not have been
included on the City's financial statements in 2012.

This is the reconciliation to restate the December 31, 2012 balances:

12/31/2012 Fund Balance for Debt Service Fund 5 2,692,772

Reclassify escrow cash {(2,833,937)
Beginning Fund Balance reported on Debt Service Statement of

Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, as adjusted $ {141,165}

The following adjustment is necessary to restate the beginning Net Position for the
Statement of Activities:

12/31/2012 Net Position on Statement of Activities $24,443,647
Reclassify loan balances 1,318,858
Reclassify escrow cash (2,833,937)

Beginning Net Position reported on Statement of Activities,
as adjusted $22,928, 5068
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE FOR THE GENERAL FUND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 40020286 $ 4092026 $ 4,101,780 % 9,754
Intergovernmental 2,693,023 2,693,023 2,718,127 25,104
Licenses and permits 167,781 167,781 188,962 21,181
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 137,800 137,800 148,872 11,072
Public charges for services 100,985 100,885 104,171 3,186
Other sources 74,801 74,801 159,811 85,010
Total Revenues 7,266,416 7,266,416 7,421,723 155,307
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 1,019,411 1,018,411 857,647 61,764
Public safety 3,762,385 3,762,385 3,752,236 10,149
Public works 1,705,968 1,705,968 1,850,697 (144,729)
Parks and recreation 588,851 588,851 590,552 (1,701)
Total Expenditures 7,076,615 7,076,615 7,151,132 {(74,517)
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 189,801 189,801 270,591 80,790
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Operating transfers out (189,801} (189,801) (186,801) 3,000
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (189,801) (189,801) {186,801) 3,000
Net Change in Fund Balances 0 0 83,790 83,790
FUND BALANCES - Beginning of Year 3,554,500 3,554,500 3,554,500 0
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR $ 3554500 § 3554500 % 3638290 % 83,790

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE FOR THE CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual {Unfavorabie)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 260500 $ 260,500 % 13,816 § (246,684)
Commercial revenue 0 0 22,953 22,953
Total Revenues 260,500 260,500 36,769 {223,731)
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay ' 1,734,350 1,734,350 1,008,896 725,454
Total Expenditures 1,734,350 1,734,350 1,008,896 725 454

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (1,473,850} _ (1,473,850) (972,127) 501,723

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bond proceeds 62,000 62,000 (62,000)
Proceeds from sale of property 101,077 101,077
Operating transfers in (ouf) 121,000 121,000 (540,000 (661,000
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 183,000 183,000 {438,923) {621,923)
Net Change in Fund Balance (1,290,850)  (1,290,850) (1,411,050) (120,200)
FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year 2,785,683 2,785,683 2,785,683 0
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 1494833 § 1494833 $ 1374633 $ (120,200)

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE FOR THE VEHICLE EQUIP. REPLAC. FUND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - VEHICLE EQUIP. REPLAC. FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

REVENUES
Commercial revenue
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Loan proceeds
Operating transfers inf(out)
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

Vartance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Favorable
Qriginal Final Actual (Unfavorable)
3 1,000 $ 1,000 % 3,292 % 2,292
1,000 1,000 3,292 2,292
407,500 407,500 338,733 68,787
(406,500) (4086,500) (335,441) 71,059
94,000 94,000 (94,000)
186,801 186,801 186,801
280,801 280,801 186,801 (94,000)
(125,699) {125,699) (148,640) {22,941)
1,577,527 1,577,527 1,577,527 0
$ 1451828 3 1451828 § 1,428,887 5 (22,941)

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE FOR THE DEBT SERVICE FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - DEBT SERVICE FUND
3FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 624272 § 624272 $ 624272 $ 0
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues 624,272 624,272 624,272 0
EXPENDITURES
Principal 1,350,093 1,350,093 1,415,104 {65,011)
Interest 537,358 537,358 537,130 228
Total Expenditures 1,887,451 1,887,451 1,952,234 {64,783)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (1,263,179 (1,263,179) (1,327,962) (64,783)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in 1,263,179 1,263,179 1,471,787 208,608
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,263,179 1,263,179 1,471,787 208,608
Net Change in Fund Balance 0 0 143,825 143,825
FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year (Restatedi (141,165) __ (141,165) {(141,165) 0
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ (141,1865) $ (141,165) $ 2660 $ 143,825

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE FOR THE CDBG FUND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CDBG FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Faveorable
Qriginal Final Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 0 3 0 3 92,579 § 92,579
Commercial revenue 35,318 35,318 71,343 36,025
Total Revenues 35,318 35,318 163,922 128,604
EXPENDITURES
Conservation and development 58,626 59,626 225,087 (165,461)
Net Change in Fund Balance (24,308) (24,308) (61,165) (36,857)
FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year 67,293 67,293 67,293 0
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 42085 § 42985 § 6,128 % (36,857)

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
ON BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING AND CONTROL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Budgetary information is derived from the annual operating budget and.is presented
using the same basis of accounting for each fund as described earlier.

A budget has been adopted for the general fund, debt service fund, capital projects
fund, and CDBG fund and comparisons of budget to actual are presented in the financial
statements. Wisconsin Statute 65.90 requires that an annual budget be adopted for all
funds. Budgetary comparisons are not required for proprietary funds.

The budgeted amounts presented include any amendments made. The City may authorize
transfers of budgeted amounts within departments. Transfers between departments and
changes to the overall budget must be approved by a two-thirds council action.
Supplemental appropriations during the year were not material. Appropriations lapse
at year end unless specifically carried over. There is no carryover to the following
year. Budgets are adopted at the function level of expenditure.
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
GENERAL FUND
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash and investments 3 2,134,296 3 2,816,646
Receivables ’
Accounts 165,785 242,142
Other receivables 118,787 168,839
Pue from other funds 4,769,073 4,658,409
Due from other governments 1,735
. Prepaid items 18,347 15,623
Advance to other funds 602,367 80,187
TOTAL ASSETS $ 7,810,380 § 7,981,846
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3 123,728 % 167,023
Accrued liabilities 332,696 251,264
Due to other funds 3,246 187,210
Unearned revenue 6,684
Total Liabilities 466,354 605,497
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Property taxes 3,705,746 3,821,849
FUND BALLANCES
Nonspendable 18,347 - 15,623
Assigned 13,120
Unassigned 3,608,823 3,538,877
Total Fund Balances 3,638,290 3,554,500
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCES $ 7,810,300 % 7,981,846
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

. ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Special assessment receivable
Due from other funds
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes

FUND BALANCES
Restricted

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCES
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2013 2012
$ 1,927,006 $ 2,881,437
340 12,029
986 1,588
143,989 267,908
3 2,072,321 3 3,162,962
3 75636 $ 229,577
585,470 120,700
17,564 13,617
678,669 363,894
18,019 13,385
1,374 633 2,785,683
$ 2072321 § 3,162,962
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
VEHICLE EQUIP. REPLAC.FUND
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 2,684,504 % 2,198,068
Accounts receivable 61,579 61,579
Bue from other funds 612
Advance to other funds 765,443
TOTAL ASSETS B 2,746,695 § 3,025,990
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts payable 5 84 $ 1,257

DGue to other funds 194,125

Due to other governments 1,317,724 1,253,081

Total Liabilities 1,317,808 1,448,463

Fund Balances

Restricted 1,428,887 1,577,527
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ . 2746695 B 3,025,990
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

DEBT SERVICE FUND

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Due from other funds
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Due to other funds

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes

FUND BALANCES
Restricted

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCES
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2013 2012

¢ 0

814,713 751,206
814,713 751,206
143,741 268,099
668,312 624,272
2,660 (141,185)
814,713 751,206
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
CDBG FUND
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Restricted

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

-55-

2013 2012
6,131 67,293
1,277 671 1,211,169
1,283,802 1,278,462
.3 0
1,277,671 1,211,168
1,277,674 1,211,169
6,128 67,293
1,283,802 1,278,462
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013

Total
Special Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Project Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1080926 $ 211,738 § 1,292,665
Accounts receivable 290,194 290,194
Special assessments receivable 32,944 32,944
Prepaid expense 4,229 4,229
Due from other funds 1,194,993 30,729 1,225,722
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2570342 % 275412 $ 2,845,754
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 55955 $ 8950 §% 64,905
Due to other funds _ 1,000,491 1,000,491
Unearned revenue 188,401 31,844 220,345
Advance from other funds 523,580 523,580
Total Liabilities 1,768,427 40,894 1,809,321
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes 675,003 15,247 690,250
FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 4,229 4,229
Restricted 122,683 219,271 341,954
Total Fund Balances 126,812 219,271 346,183

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS,
AND FUND BALANCES $ 2570342 % 275412 § 2,845,754
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Total
Special Capital Nonmajer
Revenue Projects Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes % 722,597 % 0 % 722,587
Special assessments : 57,005 57,005
intergovernmental ] 761,055 22 761,077
Public charges for services 194,480 194,480
Commercial 162,288 18,196 181,484
Miscellaneous . : 9,695 9,695
Total Revenues 1,850,115 76,223 1,926,338
EXPENDITURES
General government 258,282 258,282
Public safety 5,645 5,645
Parks and recreation 61,991 61,991
Conservation and development 228,414 228,414
Education 628,624 628,624
Capital outlay 1,618,110 120,177 1,638,287
Total Expenditures 2,701,066 120,177 2,821,243
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures {850,951) (43,954) (894,905)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) :
Operating transfers in 510,000 510,000
Operating transfers out (438,527) {438,527)
Net Cther Financing Sources (Uses) 71,473 0 71,473
Net Change in Fund Balance (779,478) (43,954) (823,432)
FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year 906,390 263,225 1,169,615
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 126,912 $ 219271 § 346,183
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expense
Due from other funds
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Due to other funds

Uneamed revenue

Advance from other funds
Total Liabiiities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES

Property taxes

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCES

-5g-

2013 2012

$ 1,080,926 % 1,727,059

290,194 287,084

4,229 2,425

1,194,993 742,039

$ 2,670,342 § 2,758,607

$ 55956 % 57,538

1,000,481 172,399

188,401 189,774

523,580 765,443

1,768,427 1,185,154
675,003 667,063

4,229 2,425

122,683 903,965

126,912 906,390

$ 2,570,342 § 2,758,607
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
_ ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 211,739 256,844
Special assessments receivable 32,944 90,628
Due from other funds 30,729 39,419
TOTAL ASSETS 3 275412 386,891
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 8,950 39
Unearned revenue 31,944 90,628
Due to other funds 12,266
Total Liabilities 40,894 102,933
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes 18,247 20,733
FUND BALANCES

Restricted 219,271 263,225
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BAILANCES 3 275,412 386,891
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FEDERAL AND STATE SINGLE AUDIT AND
GOVERMNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS REPORTS AND SCHEDULES
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards include the
federal and state grant activity of the City of Portage and-are presented on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in these schedules is presented
in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A~133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit QOrganizaticns and the State Single Audit Guidelines.
Therefore, some amounts presented in these schedules may differ from amounts presented
in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.
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MILLER, BRUSSELL, EBBEN AND GLAESKE LLC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
POST OFFICE BOX 585
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN
53901

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL, REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS RASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL -STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Council Members
City of Portage
Portage, Wisconsin

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits centained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infermation of the City of Portage
(che "City") as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated August 13, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing cur audit of the financial statements, we considered the
City's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.
Accerdingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal
contrel.

A deficiency 1in internal ceontrol exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, tc prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attenticn by those charged with governance.

Qur consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified. We did identify a deficiency in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 13-1 to be a
significant deficiency.



Council Members
City of Portage
Page Two

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Portage’s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

City of Portage’s Response to Findings

The City's response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The City’s response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report 1is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purposes.

WMiller, Brussell Ebben and Glaeske LLC

Portage, Wisconsin
August 13, 2014



MILLER, BRUSSELL, EBBEN AND GLAESKE LLC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
POST OFFICE BOX 583
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN
53901

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROIL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY
OMB CIRCULAR A-~133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT GUIDELINES

Council Members
City of Portage
Portage, Wisconsin

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the City of Portage’s (the “City”) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and
the State Single Audit Guidelines that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal and state programs for the year ended December 31, 2013. The
City’s major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditeor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’'s major
federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance reguirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Single Audit Guidelines. Those
standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the Guidelines require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal and state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on z test
basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that cur audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance
for each major federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal
determinaticon of the City of Portage’s compliance.



Council Members
City of Portage
Page Two

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the City of Portage complied, in all material respects, with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that ¢ould have a direct and material
effect on its major federal and state programs for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Portage is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal or state program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpese of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-
133 and the State Single Audit Guidelines, but not for the purpose of expressing an
cpinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation
of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance regquirement of a federal or state program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there
is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control eover
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over cempliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideraticn of internal contreol over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, we identified a deficiency in internal contrel over compliance, as described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 13-2, that we
consider to be a significant deficiency.

‘The City’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our
audit 1is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The
City’'s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response,.



Council Members
City of Portage
Page Three

The purpose of this report on internal contreol over compliance is solely to describe
the scope of .our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that
testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit
Guidelines. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Miller, Brussell, Elhben and Glaeske LLC

Portage, Wisconsin
August 13, 2014
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal contrel over financial reporting:

Material weakness identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiencies identified not

considered to be material weaknesses? X Yes None reported
Noncompliance material to the financial

statements? Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiencies identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? X Yes None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with Circular A-133
Section .510(1)7 Yes X No

Identification of major federal award programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

20.509 Transit Aids Public Transportation for Non-Urban
Dollar thresheld used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Programs: $30¢, 000
Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? Yes X No

State Awards

Internal contrel over financial reporting:

Material weakness identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiencies identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? X Yes Nene reported

Type of auditer’s report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results (Continued)

Any audit findings disclosed that are required Yes X No
to be repcrted in accordance with State
Single Audit Guidelines?

Identification of major state programs:

State ID Number

Name of State Preogram

395.104

Transit Operating Aids

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

Financial Statement Significant Deficiencies

13-1 Preparation of the City's Financial Statements

Condition:

Criteria:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

Management Views

The City does not have management personnel with necessary expertise
to prepare the financial statements, related nctes and GASB 34
conversion entries necessary to report in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Due to limited resources,
management has decided to accept certain risks relevant to financial
reporting and relies on the auditor to assist with the preparation
of the City’s financial statements.

Internal controls over preparaticn ¢f the financial statements,
including footnote disclosures, should be in place to provide
reasonable assurance that a misstatement in the financial statements
would be prevented or detected.

The additional cost asscociated with hiring staff experienced in
preparation of the City’s financial statements, including additional
training, outweighs the derived benefits.

Because management relies on the auditor to assist with preparation
of the financial statements, the City’s system of internal control
may not prevent, detect or correct misstatements in the financial
statements.

We recommend City personnel continue reviewing the financial
statements by Competent staff and approve them before issuance. We
will continue to work with the City, providing information and
training where needed, to make the City’'s personnel nore
knowledgeable about its responsibility for the financial statements.

and Corrective Action Plan: See corrective action plan 13-1.
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Section III -~ Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Federal Awards Significant Deficiencies

i3-2 Financial Reporting for Federal Assistance

Conditions:

Criteria:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

OMB Circular A-133 requires the City to prepare appropriate
financial statements, including the schedules of expenditures of
federal awards. While the current staff of the City maintains
financial records supporting amounts reported in the schedules of
expenditures of federal awards, the City contracts with its auditor
to compile the date from these records and prepare the single audit
report for the City.

Having staff with expertise in federal reporting to prepare the
City’s single audit report is an internal control intended to
prevent, detect and correct a potential misstatement in the
schedules of expenditures of federal awards, or accompanying notes
to the schedule.

The additional cost associated with hiring staff sufficiently
experienced to prepare the City’s single audit report, including the
additional training time, outweigh the derived benefits.

Because management relies on its auditor to assist with the
preparation of the financial statements, including single audit
reports, the City's system of internal control may not prevent,
detect or correct misstatements in these financial statements.

We recommend City personnel continue reviewing the City’s single
audit report prepared by its auditor. While it may not be cost
beneficial to hire additional staff to prepare these items, a
thorough review of this informaticn by appropriate staff of the City
is necessary to ensure all federal programs are preperly reported in
the City’'s single audit report.

Management Views and Corrective Action Plan: See corrective action plan 13-2,

Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

No findings or questioned costs.
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CITY OF PORTAGE
PORTAGE, WISCONSIN

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

4

Significant Deficiency 13-1 Preparation of the City's Financial Statements
Recommendation - See schedule of findings and guestioned costs 13-1.

Management Views - Management agrees with the finding and the recommendation.

Corrective Action Planned - Management and the Board will continue to designate competent
staff to oversee and review the financial reports and approve them before issuance.
However, it is not feasible or cost effective to add staff with the competence to prepare
these reports.

Anticipated Completion Date ~ This action will be ongoing.

Significant Deficiency 13-2 Financial Reporting for Federal and State Assistance
Management Views — Management agrees with the finding and the recommendatiocn.

Corrective Action Planned - Management and the Board will continue t£to designate competent
staff to oversee and review the financial reports and approve them before issuance.
However, it is not feasible or cost effective to add staff with the competence to prepare

these reports.

Anticipated Completion Date - This action will be ongoing.
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CITY OF PORTAGE
FIRE DEPARTMENT SUMMARY

2012 2013 2014 2014 2015
ACTUAL  ACTUAL  BUDGET ACT 6 BUDGET
REVENUES 220,743 187,764 177,000 76,843 181,000
REVENUES GENERAL 984,722 1,049,036 1,034,665 515784 1,030,814
TOTAL REVENUES [ 1,205,465] 1,236,800] 1,211,665] 592,627] 1,211,814|
EXPENDITURES
ADMINISTRATION 217,839 211,808 216,244] 112,968 216,354
SUPPRESSION 882,091 916,117 883,388| 430,195 886,709
PREVENTION/INSPECTION 84,430 91,428 91,183 44,345 91,900
EMERGENCY SERVICES 2,701 1,665 2,500 1,473 3,000
HAZMAT 18,404 15,781 18,350 3,646 13,850
TOTAL EXPENDITURES [ 1,205,465] 1,236,800] 1,211,665] 592,627] 1,211,814|
EXPENSE COMPONENTS
PERSONNEL 581,394 628,473 622,637] 299,070 626,231
ADMINSTRATIVE EXPENSES 44,107 43,318 45,222 26,653 45,972
PURCHASED SERVICES 109,631 109,524 111,784 54,821 107,379
SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 56,453 48,345 60,175 26,541 60,525
REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE
HYDRANT RENTAL 330,870 331,421 330,870| 165,435 330,870
OUTLAY 83,010 45,188 40,977 12,089 40,837
TOTAL EXPENDITURES [ 1,205,465] 1,206,270] 1,211,665] 584,609] 1,211,814]|

PRELIMINARY 8/15/14 Page 1

4,000
(3,851)
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110
3,322
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500
(4,500)

149
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149
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14 Bdgt
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2.26%
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0.38%
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0.58%
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(518,881)
(619,038)
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(453,192)
(46,839)
(1,027)
(14,704)

(619,038)

(323,567)
(18,569)
(56,963)
(33,634)

(165,435)
(28,888)

(627,056)

% of 14 Bdgt
14 Act vs
14 Bdgt

43.41%
49.85%
48.91%

52.24%
48.70%
48.63%
58.93%
19.87%

48.91%

48.03%
58.94%
49.04%
44.11%

50.00%
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48.25%



Account Description

47322-000 RURAL FIRE DUES $ 105538 $ 33,926 $ 17,000 $ - $ 17,000 $ - 0.00% $ (17,000) -100.00%
47323-000 RURAL FIRE PROTECTION CONTRACT  $ 171,822 $ 117114 $ 124000 $ 65716 $ 124000 $ - 0.00% s (58284)  53.00%
47324-000 HAZMAT SERVICES $ 14,119 $ 15661 $ 14,000 $ 11,127 $ 17,000 $ 3,000 21.43% $ (2,873) 79.48%
48302000 SALEOFPROPERTY-FRE s - s - s - s - $ -
48309-000 SALE OF PROPERTY-OTHER $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
48500000 DONATIONS s - s - 8 - s - S -
48900-000 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
48910-000 REFUND OF PRIOR YEAREXPENSE s - s - s - s - $ -
48920-000 INSURANCE DIVIDEND $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

TOTAL REVENUE : 220,;43 $ 187,764 $ 177,000 $ 76,843 $ 181,000 $ 4,000 2.26% $ (100,157) 43.41%
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FIRE
Fund 100 Dept 15 Object 52210

Account Description

110
112
115
130
131
132
133
134
136
140
150
151
153
210

211

216
219

220
224

290
291
292
310
320

350
390
510
511
823
860

870
880

FIRE ADMIN
WAGES-FULLTIME
OVERTIME COMPENSATON
LONGEVITY
HEALTH INSURANCE
TERM LIFE INSURANCE
DENTAL INSURANCE
UNIFORM ALLOWANCE
INCOME CONTINUATION INS
RETIREE BENEFITS
EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
RETIREMENT
FICA
SICK/VACATION ACCRUAL
HARDWARE MAINTENANCE
Strand $1,000; Rhyme's $600
SOFTWARE SUPPORT
ACS GOVT SYSTEMS 795 + 350
IM RESPONDING $650
OTHER $415
ASSOCIATION DUES
OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
NEGOTIATIONS
TELEPHONE
INTERNET
$250/MONTH (10 TABLETS)
TRAINING
POSTAGE
PRINTING/PUBLISHING
OFFICE SUPPLIES
PUBLICATIONS, SUBSCRIPTIONS

REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES
ARAMARK
MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES
GENERAL LIABILITY INS
WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION INS
OFFICE FURNISHINGS & EQUIP
CHAIRS
SMALL EQUIPMENT
GEAR
COMPUTER HARDWARE
COMPUTER SOFTWARE
TOTAL FIRE ADMIN

TRANSFER TO VEH REPL

1001559242000 TRANSFER TO VEHICLE REPL

TOTAL FIRE ADMIN

Higher (Lower) 14 Bdgt Higher (Lower) % of 14
2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 15 Bdgt vs 15 Bdgt vs 14 Act vs 14 Act vs
Actual Actual Budget Act 6 month Budget 14 Bdgt 14 Bdgt 14 Bdgt 14 Bdgt
$ 109,514 $ 104,879 $109,420 $ 54,450 $109,414 $ (6) -0.01% $ (54,969) 49.76%
$ - 0% - $ - $ - $ -
$ -8 625 $ 710 $ = $ 755 $ 45 6.34% $ (710)  -100.00%
$ 19829 $ 20776 $ 21,286 $ 11,061 $ 22,351 $ 1,064 5.00% $ (10,225) 51.96%
$ 257 $ (334) $ 610 $ 246 $ 610 $ (0) 0.00% $ (363) 40.42%
$ 930 $ 931 $ 864 $ 467 $ 864 $ - 0.00% $ (397) 54.00%
$ 575 $ 400 $ 400 $ 200 $ 400 $ = 0.00% $ (200) 50.00%
$ 243 $ $ 247 $ - $ 247 $ - 0.00% $ (247)  -100.00%
$ -8 -8 = $ = $ =
$ 165 $ 203 $ 50 $ 171 $ 50 $ - 0.00% $ 121 341.00%
$ 16357 $ 15671 $ 16,236 $ 8,294 $ 14,426 $ (1,810) -11.15% $ (7,942) 51.08%
$ 3,632 $ 3578 $ 3,751 $ 1,794 $ 3,752 $ 1 0.04% $ (1,957) 47.82%
$ 939 $ - $ - $ o $ = $ - 100.00%
$ 877 $ $ 1,000 $ 723 $ 1,600 $ 600 60.00% $ (277) 72.26%
$ 2,327 $ 2149 $ 2,150 $ 1,445 $ 2,150 $ - 0.00% $ (705) 67.21%
$ 609 $ 699 $ 650 $ 465 $ 770 $ 120 18.46% $ (185) 71.54%
$ -8 165 $ - $ - $ - 100.00%
$ R

$ 1,876 $ 180 $ 1950 $ 909 $ 1,950 $ - 0.00% $ (1,041) 46.61%
$ -8 796 $ 3,200 $ 1628 $ 3200 $ - 0.00% $ (1,572) 50.88%
$ 475 $ 210 $ 750 $ 475 $ 1,000 $ 250 33.33% $ (275) 63.33%
$ 453 $ 394 $ 400 $ 213 $ 400 $ - 0.00% $ (187) 53.17%
$ 359 $ 342 $ 400 $ - $ 300 $ (100) -25.00% $ (400)  -100.00%
$ 1,830 $ 1,772 $ 1,800 $ 295 $ 1,800 $ - 0.00% $ (1,505) 16.42%
$ 149 $ 9 $ 150 $ 29 $ 150 $ = 0.00% $ (121) 19.33%
$ 1,567 $ 1,745 $ 1650 $ 864 $ 1,675 $ 25 152% $ (786) 52.35%
$ 132 $ 80 $ 250 $ 60 $ 250 $ - 0.00% $ (190) 23.93%
$ 19430 $ 19041 $ 17,032 $ 13,793 $ 17,032 $ - 0.00% $ (3,239) 80.98%
$ 14575 $ 15268 $ 13,622 $ 6,142 $ 13622 $ - 0.00% $ (7,480) 45.09%
$ 4,000 $ - $ 280 $ - $ 200 $ (80) -28.57% $ (280) -100.00%
$ -8 $ - $ -
$ 449 $ 4398 $ 1350 $ 1,227 $ 1350 $ - 0.00% $ (123) 90.89%
$ - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
$ 201,639 $ 195771 $200,207 $ 104,950 $200,317 $ 110 0.05% $ (95,257) 52.42%
$ 16200 $ 16,037 $ 16,037 $ 8,018 $ 16,037 $ = 0.00% $ (8,019) 50.00%
$217,839  $211,808 $216,244 $ 112,968 $216,354 $ 110 0.05% $ (103,276) 52.24%

NOTE: Full-time wages include 100% of Fire Chief and 90% of Fire Secretary wages.
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Account Description
FIRE SUPPRESSION

12 OVERTIME COMPENSATION 24,964 $ 26,876 $ 25,743 $ 11,972 $ 26,255 $ 512 1.99% s  (13,771) 46.51%

=

30 HEALTH INSURANCE 50,405 $ 64,702 $ 64,437 $ 35,683 $ 67,659 $ 3,222 5.00% $ (28,754) 55.38%

=

32 DENTAL INSURANCE 1474 $ 1648 $ 1,440 $ 831 $ 1,440 $ 0.00% $ (609) 57.72%

=

4@ $350 $ $

RETIREMENT 46,715 $ 50,484 $ 48,011 $ 22,568 $ 42,774 $ (5,237) -10.91% $  (25443) 47.01%

=

SICK/VACATION ACCRUAL -8 -3 $ $

=

19 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES s 5620 $ 3543 $ 5250 $ 1,868 $ 5,200 $ (50) -0.95% $ (3,382) 35.58%

N

TELEPHONE $ 1223 $ 1,600 $ 516 $ 1,600 $ 0.00% $ (1,084)  32.23%

2

UNIFORMS $ -8 - $ $

N

OPERATING SUPPLIES $ 2,233 $ 1,402 $ 2,300 $ 1,139 $ 2,300 $ 0.00% $ (1,161) 49.50%

w

GASOLINE/OIL 9,940 $ 8636 $ 9,000 $ 4,502 $ 9,000 $ 0.00% $ (4,498) 50.02%

w
@

MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES 1,701 $ 1529 $ 1,900 $ 1,042 $ 1,900 $ 0.00% $ (858) 54.84%

w
@

HYDRANT RENTAL 330,870 $ 331,421 $ 330,870 $ 165,435 $ 330,870 $ 0.00% $ (165435) 50.00%

ol
@

- s -8 -8 -8 -

ol

OFFICE FURNISHINGS & EQUIP

@

17,343 $ 17,260 $ 8,103 $ 17,200 $ (60) -0.35% $ (9,157) 46.95%

o]

SMALL EQUIPMENT

@

NOTE: Full-time wages include 100% of Captain Engineer, 2 Lt. Engineers and an Engineer
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Account Description
PREVENTION/INSPECTION

112 OVERTIME COMPENSATION 6,086 $ 6012 $ 4,084 $ 2,471 $ 4,165 $ 81 2.00% $ (1,613) 60.50%

@

130 HEALTH INSURANCE 13949 $ 16,772 $ 16,109 $ 8,921 $ 16,915 $ 805 5.00% $ (7,188) 55.38%

@

491 $ 563 $ 480 $ 277 $ 480 $ 0.00% $ (203) 57.77%

132 DENTAL INSURANCE

@

150 RETIREMENT 10296 $ 10,938 $ 10,490 $ 5294 $ 9,346 $ (1,144) -10.91% $ (5197) 50.46%

@

153 SICK/VACATION ACCRUAL 285 $ $ $ $

@

219 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES s -8 - $ - $ - $ -

320 PUBLICATIONS, SUBSCRIPTIONS $ 855 $ 1166 $ 1,300 $ 1,166 $ 1,300 $ 0.00% $ (135)  89.65%

341 VEHICLE/EQUIP MAINT SUPPLIES $ - $ -

TOTAL PREVENTION/INSPECTION s 84430 $ 91,428 $ 91,183 $ 44,345 $ 91,900 $ 717 0.79% $ (46,839) 48.63%

NOTE: Full-time wages include 100% of Fire Inspector wages
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Account Description
EMERGENCY SERVICES

290 TRAINING

310 OFFICE SUPPLIES

840 EQUIPMENT $

TOTAL EMERGENCY SERVICES s 2701 $ 1,665 $ 2,500 $ 1473 $ 3,000 $ 500 20.00% $ (1,027) 58.93%
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Account Description
HAZMAT

219 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES(1) $ 4424 $ 4140 $ 5000 $ $ 500 $ (4,500) -90.00% $ (4,904) 1.92%

290 TRAINING $ - % -8 - $ $

340 OPERATING SUPPLIES $ 5635 $ 3,765 $ 6,800 $ 590 $ 6,800 $ - 0.00% $ (6,210) 8.67%

840 EQUIPMENT $

880 COMPUTER SOFTWARE $

(1) Physicals to be covered by State Hazmat Funds

PRELIMINARY 8/15/14 Page 7



CITY OF PORTAGE
POLICE DEPARTMENT SUMMARY

Higher
(Lower) 14
Higher (Lower) 14 Bdgt Bdgt % of 14 Bdgt
15Bdgtvs 15Bdgtvs 14 Actvs 14 Act vs
2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 14 Bdgt 14 Bdgt 14 Bdgt 14 Bdgt
ACTUAL ACTUAL  BUDGET ACT 6 BUDGET
REVENUES 31,059 42,912 21,040 14,321 25,320 4,280 20.34% (6,719) 68.07%
REVENUES GENERAL 2,553,863 2,522,478 2,600,889 1,243,078 2,592,928 (7,962) -0.31% (1,357,811) 47.79%
TOTAL REVENUES [ 2,584,922] 2,565,390] 2,621,929] 1,257,400] 2,618,248] (3,682) -0.14%  (1,364,530) 47.96%
EXPENDITURES
ADMINISTRATION 503,949 501,753 486,231 268,740 484,930 (1,301) -0.27%  (217,491) 55.27%
PATROL 1,607,923 1,577,610 1,667,042 745,806 1,660,700 (6,342) -0.38%  (921,235) 44.74%
CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION 292,125 290,921 295,883 149,921 293,530 (2,354) -0.80%  (145,962) 50.67%
SPECIAL SERVICES 34,896 194,774 172,774 92,933 179,089 6,315 3.66% (79,841) 53.79%
COMMUNICATIONS 146,029 332 0 0 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES [ 2,584,922] 2,565,390] 2,621,929] 1,257,400] 2,618,248] (3,682) -0.14%  (1,364,530) 47.96%
EXPENSE COMPONENTS
PERSONNEL 2,243,747 2,265,918] 2,335,138] 1,100,206 2,330,992 (4,147) -0.18%  (1,234,932) 47.12%
ADMINSTRATIVE EXPENSES 97,538 117,167 96,219 49,985 94,254 (1,965) -2.04% (46,234) 51.95%
PURCHASED SERVICES 35,380 33,585 33,984 22,756 35,819 1,835 5.40% (11,228) 66.96%
SUPPLIES/MATERIALS 91,641 86,767 87,050 45,289 87,450 400 0.46% (41,761) 52.03%
REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 4,200 5,448 8,750 5,616 8,250 (500) -5.71% (3,134) 64.19%
UTILITIES 23,863 18,747 22,810 12,900 23,360 550 2.41% (9,910) 56.55%
OUTLAY 88,553 37,757 37,978 20,646 38,123 145 0.38% (17,332) 54.36%
TOTAL EXPENDITURES [ 2,584,922] 2,565,390] 2,621,929] 1,257,400] 2,618,248] (3,682) -0.14%  (1,364,530) 47.96%
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Account Description

Vests
43521-000 LAW ENFORCEMENT IMPROVEMENT $ 7520 $ 3520 $ 3520 $ 3,360 $ 3520 $ - 0.00% $ (160)  95.45% Training
Snow Ord.
45221-000 LAW ENFORCEMENT JUDGEMENTS $ 256 $ 800 $ 30 $ 142 $ 300 $ - 0.00% $ (158) 47.20% Restitutions
Alarms/
Copies/
Blood
46210-000 LAW ENFORCEMENT FEES $ 3020 $ 4418 $ 3000 $ 2,655 $ 4,000 $ 1,000 33.33% $ (345)  88.49% Draws
46440-000 WEED AND NUISANCE CONTROL $ 716 $ 6976 $ 1500 $ 2,685 $ 6,500 $ 5,000 333.33% $ 1,185 178.99%
Pistols
48510-000 DONATIONS - POLICE $ 450 $ - $ 450 $ - $ - $ (450) -100.00% $ (450) -100.00% Triathlon
48500-000 DONATIONS $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
48910-000 REFUND OF PRIOR YEAR EXPENSE $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ -
TOTAL REVENUE $ 31,059 $ 42912 $ 21040 $ 14,321 $ 25320 $ 4,280 20.34% $ (6,719) 68.07%
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Police Admin

Fund 100 Dept 10 Object 52110
Account Description

110
111

112
115
130
131
132
133

134
136
140
150
151
153
201
210
211

212
216

219

221
222
232
290

291
292
294

310
320
340
510
511
512
514
520
823
840
860
870
880

WAGES-FULLTIME
WAGES-PARTTIME

OVERTIME COMPENSATION
LONGEVITY
HEALTH INSURANCE
TERM LIFE INSURANCE
DENTAL INSURANCE
UNIFORM ALLOWANCE
CHIEF $425
SECRETARIES $550
ASS'T CHIEF $425
INCOME CONTINUATION INS
RETIREE BENEFITS
EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
RETIREMENT
FICA
SICK/VACATION ACCRUAL
DRUG/ALCOHOL TESTING
HARDWARE MAINTENANCE
SOFTWARE SUPPORT
Vision Mobile Squad Computers $5,600
ITI RMS & Squad Computers $5,300
WI Tracs Interface $1,413
Columbia County MIS $703
OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINT
ASSOCIATION DUES
MISC $165
COL CO CHIEF'S $25
OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
NEGOTIATIONS $750
ELECTRICITY & GAS
WATER & SEWER CHARGES
HVAC MAINTENANCE

TRAINING
Mid-Winter CONF $150
Emergency Management $200
SECRETARY $200
MISC MGT $150
POSTAGE

PRINTING, PUBLISHING
OTHER CONTRACTURAL SERVICES
COMM SERVICES (RADIO REPAIRS) $2,237
BLOOD DRAWS $4,000
HIRING COSTS $0
RADAR CALIBRATION $350
LICENSE CHECKS $250
TOW SERVICES $300
LEADS ONLINE (PAWN SHOPS) $2,238
HEARING TESTS (ANNUAL) $528
MISC $850
OFFICE SUPPLIES
PUBLICATIONS, SUBSCRIPTIONS
OPERATING SUPPLIES
GENERAL LIABILITY INS
WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION INS
PROPERTY INSURANCE
BOILER & MACHINERY INS
SURETY BONDS
OFFICE FURNISHINGS & EQUIP
EQUIPMENT
SMALL EQUIPMENT
COMPUTER HARDWARE
COMPUTER SOFTWARE
TOTAL POLICE ADMIN

1001059242000 TRANSFER TO VEHICLE REPL
TOTAL TRANSFER TO VEH REPL _$ 34,000

Higher (Lower) % of 14
Higher (Lower) 14 Bdgt 14 Bdgt Bdgt
2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 15 Bdgt vs 15 Bdgt vs 14 Act vs 14 Act vs
Actual Actual  Budget Act 6 month Budget 14 Bdgt 14 Bdgt 14 Bdgt 14 Bdgt
$ 226,298 $ 214,682 $ 215906 $ 120218 $ 217,125 $ 1,219 0.56% $ (95,688)  55.68%
$ 850 $ 218 $ -8 -8 - $ - 100.00%
$ 29 $ 450 $ 555 $ 6 $ 555 $ - 0.00% $ (549) 1.08%
$ - $ 1550 $ 1,625 $ - $ 1700 $ 75 4.62% $ (1,625) -100.00%
$ 48,164 $ 52,266 $ 48,328 $ 28558 $ 50,744 $ 2,416 5.00% $ (19,770)  59.09%
$ 859 $ 853 $ 1,107 $ 481 $ 1,107 $ (0) 0.00% $ (626) 43.44%
$ 2002 $ 1911 $ 1920 $ 1188 $ 1,920 $ - 0.00% $ (732) 61.87%
$ 700 $ 1,400 $ 1,400 $ 700 $ 1,400 $ o 0.00% $ (700)  50.00%
$ 479 $ -8 492 $ - 0% 492 $ = 0.00% $ (492) -100.00%
$ - $ 3765 $ 5133 $ 2567 $ 5133 $ - 0.00% $ (2,566)  50.01%
$ 132 3 168 $ 175 $ 143 $ 175 $ - 0.00% $ (32) 8L71%
$ 29,136 $ 29,314 $ 27,269 $ 15142 $ 23,638 $ (3,630) -13.31% $ (12,127)  55.53%
$ 16664 $ 15932 $ 16,791 $ 8810 $ 16,890 $ 99 0.59% $ (7,981) 52.47%
$ 5622 $ - $ .
$ 671 $ 160 $ 200 $ 73 $ 200 $ - 0.00% $ (127)  36.50%
$ 4919 $ 1,726 $ 4,000 $ 980 $ 4,000 $ - 0.00% $ (3,020) 24.49%
$ 10606 $ 14,618 $ 13,509 $ 13238 $ 13,016 $ (493) -3.65% $ (271)  97.99%
$ 735 $ 306 $ 1050 $ 98 $ 1050 $ - 0.00% $ (952) 9.33%
$ 255 $ 255 $ 255 $ 255 $ 190 $ (65) -25.49% $ - 100.00%
$ - $ - $ 750 $ $ 750 $ = 0.00% $ (750) -100.00%
$ 23060 $ 17,950 $ 22,000 $ 12441 $ 22550 $ 550 250% $ (9,559) 56.55%
$ 803 $ 797 $ 810 $ 459 $ 810 $ - 0.00% $ (351) 56.67%
$ - $ - $ - $ -
$ 20 $ 794 $ 700 $ 325 $ 700 $ - 0.00% $ (375) 46.43%
$ 1450 $ 1,574 $ 1500 $ 758 $ 1500 $ - 0.00% $ (742)  50.51%
$ 1567 $ 1,292 $ 1,200 $ 484 $ 1,200 $ - 0.00% $ (716)  40.37%
$ 10294 $ 12,816 $ 12,225 $ 3421 $ 10,753 $ (1,472 -12.04% $ (8,804)  27.99%
$ 8954 $ 6562 $ 6800 $ 3750 $ 6,800 $ - 0.00% $ (3,050) 55.14%
$ - $ - $ 100 $ 27 $ 100 $ - 0.00% $ (73) 26.67%
$ 546 $ 21 3 500 $ 435 $ 500 $ - 0.00% $ (65)  86.99%
$ 30324 $ 31,343 $ 26339 $ 18573 $ 26,339 $ - 0.00% $ (7,766)  70.52%
$ 42547 $ 53015 $ 38769 $ 17,482 $ 38,769 $ - 0.00% $ (21,287)  45.09%
$ 2107 $ 2145 $ 1586 $ 1,057 $ 1586 $ - 0.00% $ (529) 66.66%
$ - $ - $ -
$ 100 $ 130 $ 140 $ - $ 140 $ - 0.00% $ (140) -100.00%
$ $ 8 $ 250 $ 454 $ 250 $ - 0.00% $ 204 181.72%
$ - $ - $
$ - $ - $ -
$ 56 $ 1,683 $ 1,200 $ 794 $ 1,200 $ = 0.00% $ (406) 66.18%
$ - $ - $ -
$ 469,949 $ 470,105 $ 454,583 $ 252,916 $ 453,282 $  (1,301) -0.29% $ (201,667) 55.64%
$ 34000 $ 31,648 $ 31,648 $ 15824 $ 31,648 $ - 0.00% $ (15,824)  50.00%
$ 31648 $ 31648 $ 15824 $ 31648 $ = $ (15,824) 50.00%
$ 501,753 $ 486,231 $ 268,740 $ 484,930 $ (1,301) -0.27% $ (217,491) 55.27%

TOTAL POLICE ADMIN s 503,949

PRELIMINARY 8/15/14
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Account Description

111  WAGES-PARTTIME 2,066 $ 3,83 $ 10,000 $ 120 $ 500 $ (9,500) -95.00% $ (9,880) 1.20%

115 LONGEVITY $ -8 875 $ - % -8

130 HEALTH INSURANCE $ 210,853 $ 222,172 $ 254582 $ 107,692 $ 257,191 $ 2,609 1.02% $ (146,889) 42.30%

132 DENTAL INSURANCE $ 8,369 $ 7,785 $ 7,680 $ 3447 $ 7,680 $ 0.00% $ (4,233) 44.89%

134  INCOME CONTINUATION INS $ 2,055 $ -8 2333 $ -3 2372 $ 38 1.64% $ (2,333) -100.00%

136 RETIREE BENEFITS $ 17,898 $ 29,204 $ 19,194 $ 10,705 $ 13,927 $ (5,267) -27.44% $ (8,489) 55.77%

151 FICA $ 74207 $ 72432 $ 81019 $ 33501 $ 82,328 $ 1,310 1.62% $ (47,518) 41.35%

211 SOFTWARE SUPPORT $ -8 - $

240 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MAINT $ 4010 $ 5448 $ 8750 $ 5616 $ 8250 $ (500) 5.71% $ (3,134) 64.19%
SQUAD CONV $2,200 (TWO MARKED)
SQUAD MARKINGS $375 x 2
AUTO GLASS $300
DEALERSHIP SVC $5,000

DEPT IN SERV $1,500

WAWP TRNG $300

TRIAD $435

RANGE INSTRUCTOR $200

RADAR CERT $200

SFST $200

LINE SUPERVISOR $300

MGT TRNG $500

NW UNIV STAFF& COMMAND SCHOOL $0
FOOD/LODGING $565

SAFETY EQUIP $1,000
RANGE COSTS $2,700
MISC $1,500

REPAIRS MTL - (CITY LABOR PROVIDED) $9,500

TIRES $4,500
342 GASOLINE/OIL $ 60482 $ 59459 $ 58000 $ 27970 $ 58,000 $ - 0.00% $ (30,030) 48.22%
790 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE (warrants) $ 1225 $ 2,100 $ 1,200 $ 678 $ 1,400 $ 200 16.67% $ (522) 56.50%

860 SMALL EQUIPMENT $ 10457 $ 3570 $ 4,080 $ 3264 $ 4225 $ 145 3.55% $ (816) 80.00%
STREAMLIGHT FLASHLIGHTS $200
PORTABLE BREATHALYZER $400
MISC $150
1 DIGITAL RECORDER $375
DEFIBRILLATOR BATTERIES ($800 for 4)
TWO BENELLI SHOTGUNS ($2,300 FOR 2)
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Account Description

112 OVERTIME COMPENSATION 6386 $ 13413 $ 6,000 $ 7,808 $ 6,000 $ 0.00% $ 1,808 130.13%

©

130 HEALTH INSURANCE 41,953 $ 44,411 $ 48,328 $ 22,565 $ 50,744 $ 2,416 5.00% $ (25,763) 46.69%

©

132 DENTAL INSURANCE 1437 $ 1,348 $ 1,440 $ 779 $ 1,440 $ 0.00% $ (661) 54.09%

©

1@$525; 1@525*70%; 1@$425

135 VISION INSURANCE -8 - % -8 - $ -

©

150 RETIREMENT 31,749 $ 31813 $ 28,954 $ 15500 $ 24517 $ (4,438) -15.33% $ (13,454) 53.53%

©

153  SICK/VACATION ACCRUAL

©

2,367 $ - $ -

290 TRAINING 410 $ 1273 $ 900 $ 659 $ 900 $ - 0.00% $ (241) 73.18%

©

DRUG & HOMICIDE CONFERENCES $900

TOWING $200
BOMB SQUAD $500
CANINE SUPPPORT $200

EVIDENCE PROCESS $800

840 EQUIPMENT

@

MISC $800
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Account Description

111  WAGES-PARTTIME

©

22,377 $ 21,879 $ 22,200 $ 12,393 $ 22200 $ 0.00% $ (9,807) 55.82%

115 LONGEVITY

©

$ 400 $ $ $

131 TERM LIFE INSURANCE

©

10 $ 9 $ 125 $ 66 $ 137 $ 9.09% $ (59) 52.97%

133 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE

©

$ 700 $ 700 $ 350 $ 700 $

0.00% $ (350)  50.00%

135 VISION INSURANCE

©

$ $ $ $

150 RETIREMENT

©

842 $ 5680 $ 5582 $ 2,774 $ 5422 $ (160) -2.86% $ (2,808) 49.70%

153  SICK/VACTION ACCRUAL
220 TELEPHONE

49 8 -
- $ 17,638 $ 16,340 $ 8,179 $ 18,080 $ 1,740 10.65% $ (8,161) 50.05%

@ +H

AIR CARDS $4,320 9 SQUADS

MISC $125 JUVENILE CONF $150
294 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SVC $ 2783 $ 1,200 $ 4560 $ 5,000 $ 3,800 316.67% $ 3,360 380.01%
Snow Removal/Mowing Contractor

CROSSING GUARD EQUIP $200

CITIZEN POLICE ACADEMY & POLICE CHAPLAINS &
VOLUNTEERS $600

CHILDREN'S BADGES/PENS/RULERS ETC $300

TOTAL SPECIAL SERVICES _$ 34,896 $ 194,774 $ 172,774 $ 92,933 $ 179,089 $ 6,315 3.66% $ (79,841) 53.79%
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Account Description

111  WAGES-PARTTIME $ - $ - 100.00%

115 LONGEVITY $

131 TERM LIFE INSURANCE $ 44
133  UNIFORM ALLOWANCE $ 275
135 VISION INSURANCE $ -

136 RETIREE BENEFITS $ 2,073

150 RETIREMENT $ 2,978

153  SICK/VACATION ACCRUAL $ - $ -

219 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $ - $ -
NEGOTIATIONS $500

220 TELEPHONE $ 14,433 $ -

Transfer to Special Operations for Communtity
Service Officers $500

294 OTHER CONTRACTURAL SERVICES $ - % -

Transfer to Special Operations
TELETYPE PAPER $450 Two sets of Badges for
CSO's $260
342 REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES $ - $ -

823  OFFICE FURNISHINGS & EQUIPMENT s -8 -

MDC's in 3 detective vehicles $35,981
MDC in Engine 8 $10,000
860 SMALL EQUIPMENT $ - $ 332
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INTER-MUNICIPAL AGREEMENT
Between

CITY OF PORTAGE, TOWN OF CALEDONIA, TOWN OF FORT
WINNEBAGO, TOWN OF LEWISTON, TOWN OF PACIFIC, AND THE
PORTAGE FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION

I. TERM: January 1, 1015 — December 31, 2016

II. TERRITORY TO BE SERVED
III. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED UNDER AGREEMENT

1. Fire and Rescue Services
2. Inspection and Enforcement Services

IV.  EQUIPMENT TO BE COVERED UNDER AGREEMENT

Equipment Ownership

Equipment Use

Equipment Storage

Vehicle Repairs & Small Equipment Maintenance and Replacement
Vehicle and Equipment Replacement Fund

Insurance

Licensing

Reimbursement to Withdrawing Municipality

S A i M

V. COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES AND EQUIPMENT USE

1. Compensation by Each Town for Calls within that Town
2. Annual Payments Collectively Owed by the Towns to the City

VI. MEDIATION

VII. AMENDMENT

VIII. BINDING EFFECT



This Agreement is made by and between the City of Portage, (hereinafter referred to as
“CITY”), the Town of Caledonia, Town of Fort Winnebago, Town of Lewiston and Town of
Pacific, (hereinafter collectively referred to as “TOWNS”), all being municipalities which adjoin the
boundaries of the City of Portage; and the Portage Firefighters Association (hereinafter referred to
as “FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION”) being the association of firefighters serving the City of

Portage and the areas covered by this Agreement.

RECITALS

WHEREAS the CITY and FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION have previously entered
into an agreement with the TOWNS to provide fire and rescue services and other related services to

the TOWNS.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual terms and conditions set forth

below in this Agreement, the parties hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
TERM

This Agreement shall commence upon approval and signing by all of the parties and shall
end on December 31, 2014. If no party elects to withdraw from this inter-municipal arrangement
for these services, at the end of the current term, but agreement is not reached on the terms to apply
beyond the end of the current term, then the terms of this Agreement shall continue in effect until a
new agreement is executed by the parties, with the effective date for the new Agreement to then be
that date agreed upon by the parties. If the parties have agreed to provisions of this Agreement in
principal however formal action by their respective governing bodies have not occurred or fully
executed Agreements have not been received at the City by January 1 of the first year of the term
of this Agreement; all provisions of Agreement, including Addendum(s) and Schedule(s) shall be
implemented and considered to be in effect.”

It is agreed that during the term of this Agreement, upon the request of any party, the parties
shall meet to discuss any questions or concerns relating to the Agreement. In addition, the parties

shall meet prior to July 1%, to discuss possible changes to the Agreement and their respective

intentions concerning the extension of this Agreement.



ARTICLE II
TERRITORY TO BE SERVED

The territory to be served under this Agreement is shown on Appendix 1. It shall include all
of the Town of Fort Winnebago and all of the Town of Pacific. It shall also include all of the Town
of Caledonia except that portion located southerly of the highlighted boundary line shown on
Appendix 2 (that excepted portion being served by the Merrimac Fire Department). It shall also
include all of the Town of Lewiston, except Sections 1, 2 and 3 of Township 13 North, Range 7
East and Sections 4, 5 and 6 of Township 13 North, Range 8 East, (those excepted sections being
served by the Briggsville Fire Department). The Sections of 7, 8, and 9 of Township 13 North,
Range 8 East and Sections 10, 11, and 12 of Township 13, Range 7 East will be paged

simultaneously to calls for service.

ARTICLE III
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED UNDER AGREEMENT

Under this Agreement the FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION shall provide fire and rescue
services, fire inspection services and fire code enforcement services to the TOWNS, in that territory

to be served under this Agreement. These services shall be provided on the terms set forth below:

1) FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICES: The on-duty Engineer at the Fire Station
and other available firefighters shall, with reasonable diligence, respond to all calls for fire
protection and rescue services needed at any location to be served under this Agreement.
They shall deliver such trucks/equipment covered by this Agreement to the reported source
of need and render such firefighting and rescue services, as reasonably necessary to do so.
Those firefighters shall at all times be under the direction of the senior officer at the scene
and that senior officer shall exercise his/her judgment as to the best manner to utilize the
firefighters and provide the fire and rescue services at that location. The Fire Chief, or
his/her designee, shall at all times retain the right to determine the amount of fire personnel
needed for any fire/rescue call.

If fire trucks/equipment are required, at the same time, in more than one location

within the territory to be served under this Agreement, then the senior officer at the Fire

3



Station shall, in the exercise of his/her judgment, determine where such equipment shall first
be sent, based upon the information available to him/her.

For those calls where mutual aid is sought from another fire department, the
department to be contacted to provide that mutual aid shall be the department located
closest to the site where the services are required, that is capable of providing the services
needed at that site.

2) INSPECTION AND ENFORCEMENT SERVICES: In regard to fire
code inspections and fire code enforcement, the Portage Fire Chief and Fire Inspector shall
regularly inspect for compliance with fire codes and shall cite fire code violations, within the
territory to be serviced under this Agreement. In regard to any citation issued in a Town,
upon issuance a copy of the citation shall be sent to the Town Clerk. Each Town shall have
in effect an ordinance adopting such pertinent regulations as shall be necessary for the

inspection and enforcement services to be performed under this Agreement.

The FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION and its personnel, in providing these services under this
Agreement, shall at all times be deemed to be independent contractors. In doing so, they shall not

be deemed to be employees of the CITY or of any of the TOWNS.

ARTICLE IV
EQUIPMENT TO BE COVERED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT

1) EQUIPMENT OWNERSHIP. The TOWNS are the present owners of
Tender 4 and Tender 5, (both of which are fully equipped). The ownership of the following
equipment is split, with the CITY owning 51% and the TOWNS owning 49%.

Boat 1 Engine 6 SCBA’s (22)
Brush 1 Engine 8

Brush 2 Hovercraft 1

Engine 3 Hazmat Squad 2

2) EQUIPMENT USE. The equipment jointly owned by the CITY and
TOWNS shall be available to be jointly used on behalf of the CITY and TOWNS for their

firefighting and rescue services. The trucks and other equipment solely owned by the
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TOWNS are intended for fire and rescue services in the territory covered by this Agreement
but may also be used within the City’s boundaries if the City’s own equipment is in use and
the Fire Chief or the Chief’s designee deems it necessary to utilize that equipment for the
City’s fire fighting purposes. However, in the case such trucks and equipment are in use in
the CITY, if any emergency call comes in which requires that truck/equipment for
firefighting purposes in the tertitory covered by this Agreement, then such truck/equipment

shall be made immediately available for that response.

3) EQUIPMENT STORAGE. The CITY shall store the equipment
described in paragraph 1 above, at the Portage Fire Station or some other suitable heated
storage facility within the City of Portage during the term of this Agreement and shall at all
times keep the trucks filled with water and shall keep all such vehicles filled with fuel. If any
of that equipment is damaged while being stored by the CITY and such damage is not
covered by any insurance, then the CITY shall only be liable if such damage is caused by its
negligence. However, this provision shall not be construed to limit any insurance coverage

that may otherwise cover such damage.

4) VEHICLE REPAIRS & SMALL EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE
AND REPLACEMENT: The CITY shall be responsible for keeping the equipment
covered by this Agreement properly maintained and in good repair during the term of this
Agreement.

$10,000.00 for Vehicles and $16,000.00 for small equipment from the TOWNS shall
be annually budgeted collectively by the TOWNS, with each Town’s proportionate share of
that sum to be based upon its percentage share of the aggregate equalized valuation of the
four TOWNS. When vehicle repairs or small equipment repairs or replacement are needed,
the CITY will bill the TOWNS their share of the expenses. The CITY shall also annually
budget sufficient funds to cover its share of such vehicle repair expenses and small

equipment maintenance and replacement.

The CITY will be reimbursed the cost of the Engineer’s houtly rate for the
Engineer’s time in making repairs to any vehicles owned solely by the TOWNS and 49% of

the cost of the Engineer’s hourly rate for the Engineer’s time in making repairs to any
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vehicles that are owned in common by the CITY and TOWNS. Invoices for such
equipment repairs shall be provided to the TOWNS quarterly itemizing the total costs of
those repairs and showing the total repair costs along with the CITY’S respective share and
the TOWNS’ respective share of those repair expenses. However, the TOWNS shall be
contacted in advance regarding any major repairs that are being proposed.

If, during the term of this Agreement, a major repair is required, the cost of which
would exceed the amount in that fund that is set aside for equipment repair, then the
Chairperson/Mayor of each municipality that holds an ownership interest in that equipment,
or his/her designee, shall meet together on reasonable notice, to act on the repair or
replacement of that damaged equipment. Any such expenditure of funds to repair or replace
such equipment, (except for emergency repairs), must be approved by a majority vote of the
municipalities who own such damaged equipment. On commonly owned equipment, the
CITY shall pay 51% of such approved repair/replacement cost and the TOWNS shall pay
49% which payment by the TOWNS is to be allocated among them based upon their
respective percentage share of the aggregate equalized valuation of the four towns. On
equipment owned solely by the TOWNS, the approved repait/replacement cost shall be
similarly allocated among them based upon each of their respective percentage share of the
aggregate equalized valuation of the four towns.

The CITY shall arrange for such repairs and/or replacement that have been
approved under the procedure set forth above and for emergency repairs. It shall submit
itemized bills monthly to each of the TOWNS covering the total costs of the repairs and
each TOWNS’ respective share of such costs, with those bills to be paid by the TOWNS at
the next billing cycle after such bill is received, unless other payment arrangements have

been agreed upon by the parties.

5) VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND: A fund
known as the “Vehicle and Equipment Replacement Fund” has been utilized by the parties
for the purpose of meeting future vehicle and equipment replacement costs. This fund is
intended to ensure the availability of funding necessary to meet future replacement costs.
This fund shall be used to replace equipment in accordance with Schedule A (attached). The

following provisions will apply to that fund.



a) The CITY and TOWNS will contribute an additional amount annually to the
Vehicle and Replacement Fund based on the amortized replacement cost of
firefighting apparatus listed on Schedule A.  The TOWNS proportionate
contribution covering items commonly owned by the CITY and TOWNS shall be
set at forty-nine percent (49%) of the established annual amortized replacement cost
of said apparatus and vehicles and the CITY’S proportionate contribution shall be
set at fifty-one percent (51%) of the established annual amortized replacement cost
of said apparatus and vehicles. Each TOWN’S proportionate share of the total
amount owed by the TOWNS shall be based on its respective percentage share of
the total aggregate equalized valuation of the four TOWNS. If the CITY elects to
bond or secure other financing to pay for its share of such vehicle and apparatus
expense, rather than annually contributing its share into this fund, then it is agreed
that the CITY is legally bound by this Agreement to contribute, through bonding or
other financing means, its share for such replacement costs, at such time as
replacement is provided for under the replacement plan set forth on Schedule A,
unless a majority of the parties agree to a modification of the replacement plan, in
which case, the CITY shall then be required to contribute its share of such expense

in accordance with that modified replacement schedule.

b) The annual contributions to this fund shall be paid to the City Clerk during
the first quarter of the calendar year with such funds to be allocated to the Vehicle
and Equipment Replacement Fund. The TOWNS’ contributions to this fund shall
be maintained as a segregated account with the Fund and a record shall be kept of
each party’s contributions to the Fund. All interest on invested Town funds shall be
credited to the TOWNS’ account and the CITY shall provide to each Town an
annual statement detailing account activity. Funds deposited and held in the
TOWNS’ account shall be used exclusively for the purchase of firefighting apparatus
owned jointly by the TOWNS and/or apparatus owned in common by the TOWNS
and the CITY. Specifications for replacement of such firefighting apparatus shall be
submitted to those parties who are to have an ownership interest in such apparatus,
for their review and approval. Funds held in the TOWNS’ account shall be released

only upon the written approval and authorization of the respective Town Boards.
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6) INSURANCE: The CITY agrees to insure all equipment, described in
paragraph 1 above, owned in whole or in part by the TOWNS, with the same coverage as
the CITY carries on its own equipment. Additionally, the CITY shall provide reasonable
liability coverage, covering the operation of such equipment under this Agreement and shall
provide worker’s compensation coverage covering the personnel of the FIREFIGHTERS
ASSOCIATION in their operations under this Agreement. The TOWNS shall reimburse
the CITY for that portion of premium expense attributable to providing insurance for the
trucks solely owned by the TOWNS. The CITY shall provide an itemized statement of said
premium costs. Additionally, the TOWNS shall reimburse the CITY for that portion of
worketr’s compensation costs, which are charged as a result of providing coverage beyond
the City limits. In the event of a loss occurring while responding to a call to any territory
covered by this Agreement, the TOWNS shall be responsible for any deductible, which may
be applied by the City’s carrier.

7) LICENSING: The CITY shall obtain and pay for any license that may be

required for the equipment described in paragraph 1 above.

8) REIMBURSEMENT TO WITHDRAWING MUNICIPALITY: If,
upon the conclusion of the term of this Agreement, one or more municipalities elect not to
extend its participation in the inter-municipal arrangement for the services covered by this

Agreement, then each withdrawing municipality shall be entitled to the following:

a) To its share of the Vehicle and Equipment Replacement Fund, based upon
its respective contributions toward the replacement of the equipment being funded
by that Fund. That payment is to be made to the withdrawing municipality within
ninety (90) days after the date that its participation in this inter-municipal

arrangement for services ceases.

b) To the reasonable value of its share of the equipment described in paragraph
1 above. Its share of the TOWNS’ combined ownership share in that equipment

shall be based on its average percentage share of the aggregate equalized value of the
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four towns over the previous ten (10) year period prior to its withdrawal. The
municipalities who elect to remain in this inter-municipal arrangement for these
services, may elect to sell any items of equipment in which the withdrawing
municipality possesses an ownership interest, for its fair market value, and in that
event the withdrawing municipality shall receive its respective share of those net sale
proceeds upon conclusion of such sale. The municipalities who wish to remain in
such inter-municipal arrangement for these services, in lieu of selling such
equipment, may retain any items of such equipment in which the withdrawing
municipality possesses an ownership interest. In that event, such equipment retained
shall be appraised by a mutually agreed upon appraisal firm and the withdrawing
municipality shall then receive its respective share of the appraised value of such
items of equipment, in annual payments, without interest, equally amortized over a

period of ten years.

ARTICLE V
COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES AND EQUIPMENT USE

The following provisions shall apply to compensation for services and equipment

use covered by this Agreement:

1) COMPENSATION BY EACH TOWN FOR CALLS WITHIN THAT
TOWN: A recotd shall be kept of the time each truck leaves the Portage Fire Station,
the time of its return and the time of its required clean up, and each Town shall be
responsible for, and pay for, services rendered within the limits of such time and

associated costs, as follows:

a) To the FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION, the sum of $10.00 per hour per
firefighter (volunteer/paid-on-call) responding to the emergency page out
regardless if a vehicle leaves the station or not. After the first hour or

service, charges will be assessed per quarter hour.



b)

d)

2)

h)

To the CITY, the sum of $310.00 per hour for emergency page outs to the
TOWNS. After the first hour of service, charges will be assessed per quarter

hour. This sum will only be charged if a vehicle leaves the station.

To the CITY the cost of the Fire Chief’s labor cost including wages and
benefits per hour for response of the Fire Chief to any fire/rescue response

or investigation per Exhibit B.

To the CITY, the cost of on-duty Engineer straight time and off-duty
Engineer overtime wages incurred as a result of the emergency page out,
regardless if a vehicle leaves the station or not. As per current labor contract
between the CITY and the International Association of Firefighters, Local

#2775. See Exhibit B.

To the CITY, the cost of fuel used on calls within the TOWNS for vehicles
solely owned by the TOWNS and 49% of the cost of fuel used on calls for
vehicles owned in common by the CITY and TOWNS. Such fuel charges
shall be billed to the TOWNS quarterly.

To the CITY a charge for all City water used to flush out contaminants
and/or to refill the engine/tanker utilized during the emergency page out to
the TOWN. Said charge shall be assessed at the current Public Fire

Protection rate as established by the Public Service Commission.

To the CITY the sum of $50.00 per hour and to the FIREFIGHTERS
ASSOCIATION in the sum of $50.00 per hour, for the use of the rescue
system (Jaws-of-Life and/or air bags) as deemed necessatry by the Fire Chief

or his/her designees at any emergency scene.

To the CITY 100% of the costs of all expenses incurred during any ISO

certification or re-certification for the TOWNS, which has been requested by
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the TOWNS in written form. Any cost necessary to maintain the ISO rating
will be billed to the TOWNS.

All calls for services covered by this Agreement shall be answered without delay for
verification. The TOWN to which a crew and vehicles are sent, in response to such a call,
shall be responsible for the charges incurred, regardless of whether the call turns out to be a

false alarm.

All town emergency responses shall be reported to the Chief, and to the City of
Portage Treasurer. The City of Portage Treasurer each month shall forward to the
responsible TOWN, itemized bills covering the compensation earned by both the CITY and
the FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION during the preceding month. Payment of the
CITY’S bill shall be forwarded to the CITY and payment of the FIREFIGHTERS
ASSOCIATION’S bill shall be forwarded to the FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION. The
monies owed to the FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION is to be utilized as voted upon by a
majority of the Association’s members present at the monthly meeting, as per the operation
Bylaws of the Association. All payments due to the FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCATION and
the CITY relating to any emergency response shall be paid at the next billing cycle after the
TOWNS have received both the CITY’S billing and the FIREFIGHTERS
ASSOCIATION’S billing regarding that emergency response. Balances existing after this
period that are not in dispute, will be assessed at the interest rate of 12% Annual Percentage

Rate (APR).

2) PAYMENTS COLLECTIVELY OWED BY THE TOWNS TO THE CITY:

a) Administration Fee: Annually the TOWNS’ shall collectively pay to the
CITY the total sum of $6000.00 for the years 2015 and 2016 for
administrative services. That fee shall be allocated among the TOWNS’
based upon each TOWN’S respective percentage share of the aggregate
equalized valuation of the four TOWNS. That annual fee shall be owed to
the CITY during the first quarter of each year. There shall no longer be a
separate clerical fee charged for billing the TOWNS for any amounts owed
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b)

by the TOWNS under this Agreement. In its billings to each TOWN for
fire/emergency calls, the CITY shall provide each TOWN with such
information as that TOWN may need in order to seek reimbursement of
such charges from property owners, vehicle owners, insurers or others who

may be responsible for reimbursing the TOWN.

2% DUES: Each TOWN, upon receipt, will submit to the CITY all 2% fees

that it receives from the State of Wisconsin.

Training: To the CITY, the cost of on-duty Engineer straight time and off-
duty Engineer overtime wages for required monthly training. After the first
hour, charges will be assessed per quarter hour. As per current labor
contract between the CITY and the International Association of Firefighters,

Local #2775. See Exhibit B.

ARTICLE VI

MEDIATION

In the event that there is a dispute among the parties in regard to the construction or

application of any of the provisions in this Agreement, the parties agree to submit that
dispute to mediation, with the mediator to be mutually agreed upon by the parties. The
CITY shall pay half of the costs charged by the mediator and the TOWNS, collectively, shall
pay half of the costs charged by the mediator, with each TOWN’S proportionate share of
that expense to be based upon its percentage share of the aggregate valuation in the four

TOWNS.

ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENT

This Agreement may be amended at any time by the parties, through a written

amendment executed by all of the parties.

12



ARTICLE VIII

BINDING EFFECT

The terms of this Agreement shall be binding on each of the parties and on their

governing boards and representatives.

January 1, 2015.

This Agreement shall be effective commencing

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, cach of the parties have caused this Agreement to be

duly executed by its authorized representative.

PORTAGE FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION

BY: Clayton Simonson ]r.

Chief-Portage Fire Department

Signed:

Dated:

TOWN OF CALEDONIA
BY: Steve Pate

Chairperson

Signed:

Dated:

TOWN OF FORT WINNEBAGO
BY: William Schroeder

Chairperson

Signed:

Dated:
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CITY OF PORTAGE

BY: W.F. “Bill” Tierney
Mayor

Signed:

Dated:

TOWN OF LEWISTON
BY: Jon Steinhaus
Chairperson

Signed:

Dated:

TOWN OF PACIFIC
BY: William Devine
Chairperson

Signed:

Dated:




Addendum to 2015 Inter-Municipal Agreement Between the
City of Portage Fire Department/Portage Firefighters Association and
Towns of Caledonia, Fort Winnebago, Lewiston and Pacific

August 1, 2014

Appendix A — Township Fire Apparatus Vehicle Replacement

a. Engine 3: Replaced in 2014 at 100% Township cost. By way of this Addendum, City of Portage agrees
to credit Townships 51% of 2014 Engine 3 actual purchase cost ($464,789 x 51% = $237,042) toward
scheduled replacement of Engine 8 (2024) annual Township contribution from 2015-2024 ($23,704
annual credit). Additionally, the actual cost of the 2014 Engine 3 is $37,511 less than the total Township
contributions ($502,300 - $464,789); the Townships shall be credited the $37,511 from their required
contributions toward the scheduled replacement of Engine 3 in 2044.

b. Heavy Rescue 9: In 2009 it was determined not to replace Heavy Rescue 9 therefore, $161,124 (amount
Townships contributed toward replacement of Rescue 9 through 2009) was credited toward total annual
Township contributions from 2009-2014 ($26,854 annually).

c. Hovercraft: It was determined this unit (originally scheduled for replacement in 2014) shall be delayed
until 2019. However, Townships will continue annual contribution of $4,043 to build reserve replacement
fund that Townships may reallocate toward next scheduled vehicle replacement, fund cost overruns or
offset future increases in scheduled contributions. Further evaluation of the Hovercraft will be made to
determine if unit should be replaced or reallocate accumulated funds toward another vehicle.

d. Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA): The Department has 44 air bottles with a mandatory
replacement life of 15 years and 22 air packs with an indefinite life expectancy. The original replacement
allocation ($89,800) contemplated replacement of all air bottles (in 2017) but only a portion of the air
packs (as needed). 2014 replacement cost for the air tanks are $1175/each ($51,260 total). However it was
learned the current air pack is no longer supported and with replacement it will, in turn require
replacement of the air tank as the current air tank will not be compatible with the replacement air pack.
In 2017, the air pack allocation will be re-evaluated.

e. Interest Credit: In 2008, it was determined that annual interest earned by the Vehicle Replacement
Fund shall be credited against subsequent annual Township allocations. The amount of interest earned
was calculated by observing the actual interest earned the previous January through September, plus the
actual and audited interest earned for the period from October through December of 2 years prior. This
amount will be applied as a credit toward the Townships annual allocation to the VRF on an annual basis
starting in 2009. In addition, interest earned since the Vehicle Replacement Fund was established
through 2008 was determined and the total credit due to the Townships was $57,600. This additional
amount was credited toward subsequent Townships contributions from 2009-2014.
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SCHEDULE A

2015
Draft 7/31/14
TOWNSHIP FIRE APPARATUS VEHICLE REPLACEMENT
CURRENT REPLACEMENT SCHEDULED CITY/COUNTY* TOWNSHIP PRIOR YEARS ANNUAL #*
UNIT YEAR CYCLE REPLACEMENT EST. COST SHARE SHARE CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS
Engine 3 2014 30 yrs 2044 $ 1,293,464.00 $ 659,667.00 $ 633,797.00 $ 37,511.00 $ 19,876.00
Engine 6 1990 44 yrs 2034 $ 907,251.00 $ 462,698.01 $ 444,552.99 $ 102,588.00 $ 17,098.00
Engine 8 1986 38 yrs 2024 $ 675,476.00 $ 344,492.76 $ 330,983.24 §  220,545.00 $ 11,044.00
Engine 3 City Portion Credit towards Engine 8 $ (237,042.00) $  (237,042.00) 0s$ (23,704.00)
Tender 4 1996 25 yrs 2021 $ 220,000.00 $ 220,000.00 $ 162,523.00 $ 8,211.00
Tender 5 2002 25 yrs 2027 $ 308,000.00 $ 308,000.00 $ 128,892.00 $ 13,777.00
Boat 1 2008 20 yrs 2028 $ 42,444.00 $ 21,646.44 $ 20,797.56 $ 4,158.00 $ 693.00
Brush 2 2004 26 yrs 2030 $ 22,000.00 $ 11,220.00 $ 10,780.00 $ 2,940.00 $ 490.00
Hovercraft 1999 15 yrs 2014 $ 49,500.00 $ 25,245.00 $ 24,255.00 $ 24,258.00 $ 4,044.00
Hazmat Squad* 2001 30 yrs 2031 $ 781,275.00 $ 510,170.25 $ 271,104.75 $ 70,722.00 $ 11,787.00
Brush 1 2009 21 yrs 2034 $ 97,227.00 $ 49,585.77 $ 47,641.23 $ 15,805.00 $ 4,071.00
SCBA's 2002 15 yrs 2017 $ 54,500.00 $ 27,795.00 $ 26,705.00 $ 34,802.00 $ 3,067.00
$ 4,214,095.00 $ 2,112,520.23 $ 2,101,574.77 $  804,744.00 $ 70,454.00
Less Interest Accumulated ** TBD 10/1/14
Total Adjusted Vehicle Replacement $ 70,454.00
PROJECTED ANNUAL CONTRIBUTION BY TOWNSHIP
2012 %%**
EQUALIZED VALUE PERCENT
W/TID

Caledonia $ 171,256,699 30.00%

Ft. Winnebago $ 72,407,100 12.68%

Lewiston $ 110,226,870 19.31%

Pacific $ 217,002,900 38.01%

$ 570,893,569 TOTAL

NOTES:

*  County Share $228,000
** To be adjusted annually based on actual interest earned; adjustments to replacement schedules and values.
*#* To be adjusted annually based on latest assessment information available.



115 West Pleasant Sireet

Portage, Wisconsin 53901 ;
Telephone: (608) 742-2176 « Fax: (608) 742-8623 {%ﬁiﬁ‘:ﬁfﬂ’mf B(’! ing”

MEMORANDUM
To: Finance Committee
From: Bob Redelings, City Engineer
Subject: Loader (front) Mounted Snow Blower
Date: August 14, 2014
C.C. Shawn Murphy, City Administrator

Bill Tierney, Mayor

Two bids were received for the Subject equipment and are summarized on the attached
bid tabulation.

The Fair MFG. Snocrete does not meet the specifications provided in the request for
proposal (see attached notes from the City Chief Mechanic). The Fair model proposed is
essentially the same as the 1985 Fair Model being traded.

The 1985 Fair Snow Blower hasn’t performed as expected and has seen very limited
use over the past 29 years. There are only 107 actual hours on the machine.

The snow blower proposed by Bruce Municipal Equipment meets or exceeds the City’s
specifications.

The Public Works Department recommends purchase of the Bruce 2014 Snogo Model
WK-800 snow blower for $99,863.00. The City budgeted $105,000 for this equipment

for purchase in 2014

The 1985 Fair Snow blower should be advertised for sale on open market or at auction.




BID TABULATION
Loader (front) Mounted Snowblower

08/07/2014
1PM
BIDDER ITEM NO.1 |ALT.NO.1 |NETBID MAKE/MODEL/YEAR
TRADE IN
Fair MFG., Inc (Menno, South Dakota) $78,937.00 $3,000.00 | $75,937.00 |2014 Snocrete 842S|
Bruce Municipal Equipment, Inc. $99,863.00 $1,000.00 $98,863.00 {2014 Snogo WK-800

(Menomonee Falls, Wisconsin)




At the bid opening for the loader mounted snowblower we received two bids. The first bid for a Fair
Manufacturing Snocrete 842S! model year 2014 with a price of $78,937.00 and a trade of $3000.00 for a
net of $75,937.00. The second bid for a Snogo WK-800 model year 2014 from Bruce Municipal with a
price of $99,863.00 and a trade of $1000.00 for a net of $98,893.00.

After reviewing the specifications | found the Fair to not meet the specifications used,
specifically we requested a two stage blower with a single fan and bolt on replaceable blades. The Fair
unit is a single stage dual fan unit with weld on blades. The single stage unit with dual fans makes the
snow coming out of the chute more turbulent and less efficient for loading trucks. In previous
experience with this style blower the streets would have to be done twice to get the snow removed.
The weld on blades makes it more difficult to repair and almost impossible to balance the fans.

The Snogo unit meets or exceeds all of our specifications and has a closer parts and service
location {(Menomonee Falls W1 VS Menno SD). It is also the same model that has been used here for the

past 17 years.

I am recommending we get the snogo from Bruce Municipal and check to see if there is any local
interest in purchasing our trade outright.
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

City of Portage, Wi

Public Works Department

One Loader (front) Mounted Snowblower

Due: August 7, 2014

Submit Sealed Proposals to:
Marie Moe, City Clerk
City of Portage
115 W. Pleasant Street
Portage, WI 53901
Marie.Moe@portagewi.gov
Phone: 608-742-2176
Fax: 608-742-8623




INSTRUCTION TO PROPOSERS:

1.

7.

8.

Proposals shall be for one loader mounted snowblower FOB Portage, Wisconsin, to
be delivered to the public works garage.

Only the Proposal form included here in shall be used to submit a proposal

The City of Portage reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive any
informality in the proposals, and to accept the proposal considered to be in the best

interest of the City of Portage.

Warranty and/or guarantee on the equipment shall be expressly stated and
submitted as part of the proposal.

Proposals shall be for 2014 models or newer.

Descriptive literature and complete manufacturer’s specifications shall be submitted
with the proposal. A parts and repair manual shall be provided by the successful

proposer.
The City of Portage is exempt from paying sales Tax.

Proposers shall complete the attached Data Form.

SPECIFICATIONS for one Loader (front) Mounted Snowblower

The following are minimum specifications. If the manufacturer's standard exceeds the following,
the manufacturer's standard shall be furnished and included in the proposal price. If federal
regulations require equipment in addition to or different from that which is specified, the required
equipment shall be furnished and included in the proposal price. If the equipment meets the
specification, simply indicate by checking the $td box; if the equipment differs in any way,

describe any Variation(s), accordingly.

Minimum Specifications

STD Variations

Self-contained 150 hp diesel engine

2 stage design with augers feeding a single fan

Fan must have replaceable blades

42 inch cutting height

102 inch cutting width

1000 ton per hour capacity

Single hydraulically controlled rotating telescopic chute
for loading trucks

Sized to fit a John Deere 544K wheel loader

P PP X <X

Pemberton hitch hookup
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SCHEDULE OF ANTICIPATED DATES AND DEADLINES

RFP issued July 25, 2014
RFP deadline August 7, 2014
Contract awarded by Common Council August 28,2014
Snowblower Delivery October 31,2014

SUBMISSIONIW!THDRAWL OF PROPOSALS

1. Deadline; Proposals shall be delivered to the Gity Clerk’s Office of City Hall on or
before August 7, 2014, 1:00 p.m. CDST. The City will not be liable for any costs
incurred by the proposer in responding to this RFP or participating in the RFP

process.

2. Submission of Proposal: The proposal form must be submitted in a sealed envelope.
Mark submitted envelope as follows:

Addressee: City Clerk’s Office
Portage City Hall
115 West Pleasant Street
Portage, WI 53901

Proposal for Public Works Department Loader Mounted Snowblower

3. Withdrawal of Proposal: Proposals may be withdrawn by the proposer provided a
written request is in the hands of the City Clerk before the proposal opening date and
time. Any proposal withdrawn will be returned, unopened, to the proposer after the

opening process has been completed.

ADDENDA OR QUESTIONS

The City of Portage reserves the right to modify or issue Addenda to this RFP. If
questions result in the modification of this RFP, the addenda will be distributed to known
proposers, or anyone who has indicated an interest in submitting a proposal.

Questions about the Snowblower specifications should be directed to: Cory Miller,
Public Works Mechanic, (608)742-8486.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Proposer. who is awarded a contract shall be expected to provide proof of insurance
coverage naming the City of Portage as additional insured. Proof of insurance
shall inc!ude liability coverage - Occurrence Form in the following limits:

~Vehicle Liability (owned, non-owned and hired vehicles) Bodily Injury &
Property Damage: $1,000,000

~Personal & Advertising Injury $1,000,000

~Professional Liability (E & O) $1,000,000




PROPOSAL FO}’RM: One Loader (front) Mounted Snowbiower

Having thorougﬁly examined the Request for Proposal Documents, the undersigned proposes
to furnish to the City of Portage, Wisconsin, the following equipment:

ITEM NO.1 One Loader (front) mounted snowblower complete as specified for

\husos Everest Snnloo S IK- oo ~ 201 $ 79, 863 2.
] Make/Model/Year
/f/)‘np-fv - Aine. 7 Fousand L Light Hundeed v Sity -7 bree Lolrs S
7 v (Written) 7

Complete as spec’d and built, including delivery.

Alternate ltem No. 1 Trade in value of Portage Unit No. 31 : a 1985 “Fair”, model Snocrete
7421C, Serial #653352. The hour meter reads 107 hours

Add/Deduct $ L0006 .
: " oa
0/76, ﬁu sond 12 /A\f’.ﬁ iy
' {Written)

Total with Trade: $ 74, £ 3. #— .

/%‘/w ‘%v . 5":9'%‘ 'ﬁusaﬂi / f—:—:&hﬂb #;;ncl(‘e,ci, ~ Sf)(%y‘ :ﬂf@e/ %/A/S o
. “ (Written) i

Warranty and/or guarantee on equipment shall be expressly stated and submitted with the
proposal and shall become part of the contract.

Lruce Municips /L uipment=
Company Name vr

o NS 83 ISehlewr Lone
Street Address

Mespraonee. {//4 W7 S 3057
City, State, Zip Code ’

(262 R§2- 4744

Phone Number -

Vi T

Authorized Signature

[
Sexvitery Sales
Title 7%

5-7-14

Date
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

City of Portage, WI

Public Works Department

One Loader (front) Mounted Snowblower

Due: August 7, 2014

Submit Sealed Proposals to:
Marie Moe, City Clerk
City of Portage
115 W. Pleasant Street
Portage, WI 53901
Marie. Moe@portagewi.gov
Phone: 608-742-2176
Fax: 608-742-8623




INSTRUCTION TO PROPOSERS:

1. Proposals shall be for one loader mounted snowblower FOB Portage, Wisconsin, {o
be delivered to the public works garage.

2. Only the Proposal form included here in shall be used to submit a proposal

3. The City of Portage reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive any
informality in the proposals, and to accept the proposal considered to be in the best

interest of the City of Portage.

4. Warranty and/or guarantee on the equipment shall be expressly stated and
submitted as part of the proposal.

5. Proposals shall be for 2014 models or newer.

6. Descriptive literature and complete manufacturer's specifications shall be submitted
with the proposal. A parts and repair manual shall be provided by the successful

proposer.
7. The City of Portage is exempt from paying sales Tax.

8. Proposers shall complete the attached Data Form.

SPECIF!CATEONS for one Loader (front) Mounted Snowblower

The following are minimum specifications. If the manufacturer's standard exceeds the following,
the manufacturer's standard shall be furnished and included in the proposal price. If federal
regulations require equipment in addition {o or different from that which is specified, the required
equipment shall be furnished and included in the proposal price. If the equipment meets the
specification, simply indicate by checking the Std box; if the equipment differs in any way,
describe any Variation(s), accordingly.

Minimuéﬁ Specifications STD Variations

Self-contained 150 hp diesel engine

2 stage design with augers feeding a single fan Single Stage/Twin Fans

Fan must have replaceable blades Weld-on Replaceable

42 inch cutting height

96 inch

102 inch cutting width

1000 ton per hour capacity

Single hydraulically controlled rotating telescopic chute «
for loading trucks

Sized to fit a John Deere 544K whee! loader

Pembertén hitch hookup




1.

.

VL.

SCHEDULE OF ANTICIPATED DATES AND DEADLINES

RFP issued July 25, 2014
RFP deadline August 7, 2014
Contract awarded by Common Council August 28,2014
Snowblower Delivery October 31,2014

SUBMIS?!ONM!THDRAWL OF PROPOSALS

1. Deadline: Proposals shall be delivered to the City Clerk’s Office of City Hall on or
before August 7, 2014, 1:00 p.m. CDST. The City will not be liable for any costs
incurred by the proposer in responding to this RFP or participating in the RFP

process.

2. Submission of Proposal: The proposal form must be submitted in a sealed envelope.
Mark submitted envelope as follows:

Addressee; City Clerk’s Office
: Portage City Hall
115 West Pleasant Street
Portage, W! 53801

Pi'oposa! for Public Works Department Loader Mounted Snowblower

3. Withdrawal of Proposal: Proposals may be withdrawn by the proposer provided a
written request is in the hands of the City Clerk before the proposal opening date and
time. Any proposal withdrawn will be returned, unopened, to the proposer after the

opening process has been completed.

ADDENS‘A OR QUESTIONS

The City: of Portage reserves the right to modify or issue Addenda to this RFP. If
questions result in the modification of this RFP, the addenda will be distributed to known
proposers, or anyone who has indicated an interest in submitting a proposal.

Questions about the Snowblower specifications should be directed to: Cory Miller,
Public Works Mechanic, (608)742-8486.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Propose{} who is awarded a contract shall be expected to provide proof of insurance
coverage naming the City of Portage as additional insured. Proof of insurance
shall include liability coverage - Occurrence Form in the following limits:

~Vehicle Liability (owned, non-owned and hired vehicles) Bodily Injury &
Property Damage: $1,000,000

~Personial & Advertising Injury $1,000,000

~Professional Liability (E & O) $1,000,000




PROPOSAL FCfRM: ~ One Loader {(front) Mounted Snowblower

Having thorougﬁly examined the Request for Proposal Documenits, the undersigned proposes
to furnish to the City of Portage, Wisconsin, the following equipment:

ITEM NO. 1 Qne Loader (front) mounted snowblower complete as specified for

Snocrete 84281 2014 $ 78,937.00
Make/Model/Year
Seventy-eight thousand nine hundred and thirty-seven dollars and zero cents
{Written)

Compilete as spec’d and built, including delivery.

Alternate ltem No. 1 Trade in value of Portage Unit No. 31 : a 1985 “Fair”, model Snocrete
742IC, Serial #653352. The hour meter reads 107 hours

Add/Deduct $ 20000
Three thousanii dollars and zero cents
(Written)
Total with Trade: $ 77"
Seventy-£five thousand nine hundred and thirty-seven dollars and zero cents
(Written)

Warranty and/or guarantee on equipment shall be expressly stated and submitted with the
proposal and shail become part of the contract.

Fair Manufacturing Inc.

Company Name:
PO Box 536, 28563 431st Ave.

Street Address ™
Menno, SD 5704:5;:»
City, State, Zip Code

{(605) 387-2389 .

z ,/«/l

Au iSignature

Sales Manager

Title

August 5, 2014 .

Date




EHLERS

LEADERS IN PUBLIC FINANCE

August 1, 2014

Shawn Murphy

City Administrator

City of Portage

115 West Pleasant Street
Portage, WI 53901

RE:  Water and Sewer User Rate Study Proposal

Dear Shawn:

Per your request we are pleased to provide the City with this proposal to conduct a Water and Sewer Rate Study. The goal
of this study is to assess the current financial condition of both utilities, anticipate future user rate adjustments that may be
necessary, and if required prepare a cost of service rate study for one or both utilities to ensure any rate recommendations
are fair and equitable for all customer classes and prescribes to the current process for increasing water rates through the
Wisconsin Public Service Commission (PSC).

Given that the City is unsure a full user rate study is warranted for both utilities this proposal is consists of two phases.
The first phase will consist of preparing a cash flow analysis for both utilities that analyzes their current financial state and
provides initial recommendations for user rate increases necessary to fund the current financial obligations of the utility,
as well as future upcoming capital improvement projects as applicable. If through the first phase of work it is determined
that a full rate study is warranted for either or both utilities, the second phase will consist of a full user rate study.

We look forward to working with the City on this project. Please contact Jon Cameron or myself with any questions on
the proposal.

Sincerely,

EHLERS & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Bl i

James A. Mann, CIPFA Jonathan P. Cameron
Senior Financial Advisor - Vice President Financial Advisor

“ 1 1-800-552-1171 | www.ehlers-inc.com



EHLERS

LEADERS IN PUBLIC FINANCE

Agreement to Provide Utility Rate Study Financing Services

Date of Agreement: August 1, 2014
Client: City of Portage, WI
Proposed Project: Water and Sewer User Rate Study

This Agreement is between the City of Portage (the "Client™) and Ehlers & Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers"). Ehlers agrees to
provide the following scope of services for the above Project:

Scope of Services
Phase | — Cash Flow Analysis

In this phase a separate cash flow analysis will be prepared for both utilities their current financial state and
provides initial recommendations for user rate increases necessary to fund the current financial obligations of the
utility, as well as future upcoming capital improvement projects. As part of phase | Ehlers will:

e Request and review the following:

o Current schedule of user rates.

o A copy of the last completed user rate study, if applicable.

o Detailed sewer and water billing records for the past 3 years showing billed water and sewer
consumption by customer class and rate block for the water utility portion and number of
customers by class and meter size within each utility.

Annual audits for the past three years (we currently have this information).

YTD actual expenses and revenues for both utilities.

The 2014 budget for both utilities (we currently have this information).

PSC annual reports for the last three years (available on the PSC website)

Current annual debt service schedules for existing utility debt (we currently have this

information).

Any available capital improvement plan documents for both utilities

Prepare separate detailed cash flow analysis for both utilities with the following:
= Development of annual operating expenses for the utility using an assumed rate of

inflation based on historical expenses and discussions with staff.

= Actual annual debt service expenses for existing utility debt.

» The planned debt service for Clean Water Fund Loan, Safe Drinking Water Fund Loan or
other financing for the sewer and water utility upgrades taking into consideration
available and minimum recommended reserves, existing debt and existing revenue bond
covenants if applicable.

= Project out revenues and identify projected user rate increases to meet all financial
obligations of the utility in future years.

o Meet with City staff to discuss and review the analysis.

o Make specific recommendations on the need for a simplified rate increase or full conventional
water rate case for the water utility. Currently the allowed rate increase under the simplified
process is 3.0% to all user rates. Anything higher than a 3.0% increase requires a conventional
water rate case.

O O O O O

o O

“ 1 1-800-552-1171 | www.ehlers-inc.com




EHLERS

LEADERS IN PUBLIC FINANCE

Phase Il — Utility Rate Study

If it is determined in Phase | that a more detailed user rate study of either utility is required Ehlers will perform
the services listed below. It is important to note that if the cash flow analysis from Phase | determines that
the water utility requires a simplified water rate increase and not a full conventional water rate case;
Ehlers will only perform the services listed under the Simplified Water Rate Increase.

o Simplified Water Rate Increase
o If the cash flow analysis in Phase | determines that a simplified water rate increase is required,
Ehlers will prepare and submit the request for simplified water rate increase with the Public
Service Commission. If a simplified water rate increase is required the remaining tasks
listed below for only the water utility would not apply.

o Information Gathering and Review
o We will request and review the following additional information for the sewer utility:

Any available information on upcoming developments and population growth over the study
planning period that would increase the customer base and usage, or conversely any information
on customers reducing usage or moving out of the municipality

Wastewater Treatment Facility influent data for the past 3-years if applicable.

Billable sewer flows and loadings for other high strength customers, if applicable for the past 3
years.

Current number of un-metered customers within each utility, if any.

Billable flows for waste haulers for the last three years by type of waste hauler, if applicable.

A map of the sewer system, if readily available.

o We will request and review the following additional information for the water utility:

List of 4 largest users in each customer class (i.e. residential, commercial, industrial,
public authority) including the name of the customer, meter size, and total billed
consumption for the largest quarter over the last 12 month period.

The current number of private fire protections by the size of connection, if any.

For municipal financed utility plant in service and contributed plant in service, the
estimated 2013 and 2014 asset additions, retirements and adjustments.

Current depreciation rates depreciation schedule including accumulated depreciation for
utility financed plant.

The current percentage allocated to the sewer utility’s portion of meter costs and assets.
Usually the depreciation of the meters is split 50/50 between water and sewer.
Estimated materials and supplies inventory for 2013 and 2014, if any.

For 2013 and 2014 the number of feet of main and hydrants added and retired. Please
classify additions and retirements as routine or major.

e Sewer Rate Study
o Develop of Revenue Requirements and Calculation of User Rates
o Based on the available budget, debt and asset detail, develop the revenue requirements for the utility
under the cash based or utility based method.

_m mm
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EHLERS

LEADERS IN PUBLIC FINANCE

o Allocate the revenue requirements for the test year to the appropriate utility functions. (i.e. customer,
demand, volume, BOD, TSS, etc).

o Calculate the user rates for all customer classes based on the revenue requirements allocated to each
utility function divided by the appropriate billable units.

o Create a cash flow analysis for the test year to ensure that the calculated user rates will meet the cash
flow needs of the utility.

o User Rate Comparison
= Develop a comparison of existing and proposed user rates for example properties by customer

class.

= Develop a comparison of existing and proposed user rates to other communities.
o Report and Presentation
= Prepare a report including all project tables and a brief executive summary describing the findings
and recommendations.
= Review the report with staff and make any appropriate changes.
= Prepare a final report and submit via PDF or paper copy
= Prepare and present the report and findings to the Common Council or other designated board.

e Water Rate Study

o Complete and Submit the Application to Increase Water Rates
= Complete and submit all attachments of the PSC Water Rate Application including:

Consumption of 4 largest customers by class over last 12 months

Detailed water consumption projections by rate block and customer class for the test year.
Number of water meters by meter size and customer class for the test year.

Projection of direct public fire protection revenues for test year.

Projection of private fire protection revenues for test year.

Project operating revenues for current year by customer class

Enter tax rate information and calculate PILOT payment for test year.

Enter 2013 and 2014 detailed expenses and explain any expense plus or minus 15-percent
of the 3-year average.

For 2013 and 2014, enter utility plant in service and contributed plant in service asset
additions and retirements.

Review and adjust the depreciation rates for all utility financed assets if applicable to be
in line with PSC accepted depreciation rates.

Enter the annual interest payment and principal remaining on outstanding utility debt for
the next 3-years.

Prepare a cash flow analysis for the test year and calculate the return on net investment
rate base (ROI) adequate to finance the appropriate share of debt service, equipment
replacement and capital outlay expenses.

Enter the number of feet of main and fire hydrants added and retired in 2013 and 2014.

= Assist Utility staff as needed with any follow up questions from PSC staff on the application.

1-800-552-1171 | www.ehlers-inc.com
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o Review PSC Cost of Service Analysis and Proposed Rate Schedule for 2014
= We will review the cost of service analysis prepared by the PSC and proposed rate structure for
2014 with City staff and identify any potential changes or issues with the proposed rates.
o Preparation of Report and Presentations
= We will prepare a report containing a written summary of results of the Application to Increase
Water Rates and cash flow analysis along with all supporting worksheets.
= Be present at a Common Council meeting, or other designated meeting to present the study and
proposed rate increase for 2014.
= |If requested, present the PSC proposed water rate structure for 2014 and answer questions.

o Represent the City at PSC required public hearing
= Be present at the required telephonic public hearing and provide testimony in support of the
proposed water rates for 2014 on behalf of the City.

Compensation
In return for the services set forth in the “Scope of Services,” Client agrees to compensate Ehlers as follows:
Water Utility Sewer Utility
Phase | $ 3,200 $3,200
Phase II (Conventional Water Rate Increase) $ 7,500 $4,900
Phase II (Simplified Water Rate Increase) $400
Total $3,600-$ 10,700 $8,100

Please note that under Phase Il for the Water Utility, Ehlers will either complete the conventional water rate case
or a simplified water rate increase depending on the rate increase required.

Payment for Services

For all compensation due to Ehlers, Ehlers will invoice Client for the amount due at the completion of each Phase.
Our fees include our normal travel, printing, computer services, and mail/delivery charges. The invoice is due
and payable upon receipt by the Client.

Execution and Authority

By executing this Agreement, the person signing on behalf of Client represents that he/she has the authority to
execute agreements of this type on behalf of Client and that this Agreement constitutes a binding obligation of
Client enforceable in accordance with its terms.
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The above Contract is hereby accepted
by the City of Portage, Wisconsin,

by its authorized officer this day of

By: Title:

, 20

EHLERS

LEADERS IN PUBLIC FINANCE
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Ehlers & Associates, Inc.

By: Title:

Dated: , 20
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City of Portage
CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Loan Program
Request for Subordination

Date Received: ‘3/ (3 ( léi

{For Office Use Only)}

Name(s) of Applicant:

Address:

Telephone Number—

n

Cooperating Financial Institution: i'—a
Contact Person: MV\@“M Sﬂg
Telephone Numbenﬁog‘”’zqa "GOQ_I XL{-«

Mortgage Amount to be Subordinated: A3 000
{Amount at new morigage)

Purpose of Subordination Agreement {Check all that apply}
Refinance an existing mortgage to obtain a reduced interest rate.

Refinance an existing martgage to obtain a comparable interest rate and extended payment
terms.

____ Obtain a home equity loan for the purpose of rehabilitating their primary residence.

____ Refinance an existing mortgage as necessary to halt foreclosure proceedings by a bank or
to halt tax deed proceedings by the county.

____ Dbtain a home equity loan to pay for medical emergencies.

2{_ Consolidation of consumer debt, such as credit cards, automobiles or other “cash to homeowner”
transactions, or for any home equity loans other than for the sole purpose of rehabilitating my

primary residence. Sp o QWMd

I gertify that the information in this application is correct and accurate to the best of my knowledge.

] ?zﬁf Zzosf

Date 7

é’//a,/ /<

Daté

Please attach 2 list of what the refinancing will be alfocated to.

For Office Use Only
Date Reviewed by CDBG Committes:

Action by Committee:

Date Presented to Common Council;

Action by Common Coungil:

Request_for Subordination-1



The existing mortgage on the property has been paid off. This would be
a new 1% lien as a cash out refinance to complete the following work to
both their primary residence and investment properties:

Work to be completed:

Primary Exterior Door $3300
Primary Carpeting $2000
Investment Siding $15500
Investment Driveway $5700
investment Roof $3500
Costs rolled into loan $3000

F 33,000

Subordination Request 8/13/14

Estimtated FMV S 113,300
2013 Tax Bill:

New Mortgage S 33,000
Existing Block Grant S 8,565

Equity $ 71,735



3. The Grantee will retain a permanent record of the work done on any unit located in the
- floodplain. CDBG funds may not be used to make the same repairs in the future.

VIIl. MORTGAGES

A. LOAN SECURITY

it is the grantee's responsibility to ensure that CDBG housing loans are as secure as reasonably
possible. To do this you must, at a minimum, do the following:

1.

Document ownership of the property through, at a mlmmum a letter report from an
accredlted titte company.

Review outstanding mortgages to ensure that there is adequate equity in the property to
cover the CDBG loan.

Verify that taxes and utility bills are paid.
Require the borrower to sign a mortgage and note for the amount of the loan.

Record the mortgage immediately after the mortgage and contract documents have been

- signed and the three-day rescission waiting period has expired.

Contact the borrower’s insurance company to verify adequate insurance and to be listed

- as a mortgage holder of the property (obtain Certificate of Insurance to document this).

B. SUBORDINATION

1. Homeowners who anticipate refinancing an existing loan and request that the Grantee
subordinate its mortgage position, must submit in writing the following information:

a.
b.
C.

d.

The reason for the subordination request.
The name, address, and contact person(s) at the cooperating financial institution.
The new mortgage amount that would take precedence over the Grantee’s mortgage.

Copies of estimates for any rehab/construction work being compleied

2. The Grantee will, on a case-by-case basis, consider subordination requests for homeowners
wishing to:

a.

b.

Refinance an existing mortgage to obtain a reduced interest rate.

Refinance an existing mortgage to obtain a comparable interest rate and extended
payment terms.

Obtain a home equity loan for the sole purpose of rehabilitating their primary residence.

Refinance an existing mortgage as necessary o halt foreclosure proceedings by a bank o,
to halt tax deed proceedings by the county.
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3. Typlcai!y, the CDBG Committee or Program Admmlstrator wuil NOT consider requests for
subordlnatrons if ANY of the following apply:

a. For consolidation of consumer debt, such as credit cards, automabiles or other “cash to

homeowner” transactions, or for any home equity loans other than for the sole purpose of “
rehabilrtatlng one’s primary resuience

b. For any subordination that will put the Grantee s security interest in jecpardy, as

determined by standard underwriting practice, unless reqmred to halt foreclosure or tax
deed proceedlngs

. ©. For any subordination where the interest rate on the new loan is 2% above the average
Iocal lending rate for similar type loans.

4. Wﬁﬁen'requests for subordination agreements must be épproved by the CDBG Committee.
The subordination agreement must be drafted at the homeowner's expense by the
cooperating financial institution or legal counsel.

| IX. REUSE OF FUNDS

The procedure for use of the repaid CDBG funds differs depend:ng on whether or not the Grantee

has an ongoing Community Development Block Grant Program No more than 15% of repard
funds can be used for administrative expanses

. A. ACTIVE CDBG GRANT

The funds shall be deposited into the Revolving Loan Fund account and will be used for housing
‘rehabilitation in a manner consistent with the current Implementation Handbook and active CDBG
contract. Repaid money shall be used prior to drawing down from the current contract budget.
The Revolving Loan Fund Account shall be audﬂed in the same manner and at the same time as
regular CDBG funds.

.B. INACTIVE CDBG GRANT

] _ The Program Administrator shall maintain the rehab acé.ount redords, including:

1. The Revolving Loan Fund Accounting Journal.

" a. Ali repaid funds shall be deposited into the working account and recorded in the Program
Beneficiaries Data sheet and the rehabilitation obilgatron tracking jt:-urnal '

b. Fifteen percent (15%) of repaid funds may be used for adm:mstratlon.
c Inferest eamed on repaid funds shall be recorded in the Workihg Account. -

d. Program earnings from non-rehabilitation activities (e.g., acquisition/ resale) may be used
for any contracted housing activity.

e. Noh-rehabilitation funds and administration funds shall be tracked separately.

2. The Working Account Journal.
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